# **Studio Image Printing**



# User Guide Shiraz Focus V4 Wall Art Edition

www.shiraz-software.com

# **Table of Contents**

TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
ABOUT THIS GUIDE	7
Who Should Use It	7
Typographical Conventions	7
INTRODUCTION	
Dupport	o
PURPOSE	۵۵ م
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	8
INSTALLATION	9
INSTALLING THE SYSTEM	9
UNINSTALLING THE SYSTEM	9
Starting the system	9
OVERVIEW	
Design	
Printer	
Nesting	
Status	
Рното Раск Editor	11
GETTING STARTED	
QUEUE WIZARD	
Example Job	20
Preferences	
General	
Profile	
Crop Marks	
Job Label	
Boundary Marks	
Frame	
Fotoba Marks	
Profile List	
DESIGN	
Image Browser	
MODE	41
Original	41
РнотоРас	
Single	
Multiple	
Canvas Gallery Wraps	
Frame Type	
Multiplex	
Frame and text	55

WALL ART	56
Image	58
Placement	
Rotate	
Mirror	
Adjust	
Templates	
Tiles	
Output	70
Advanced editing	73
IMAGE EDIT	81
Placement	
Rotate	
Mirror	
Adjust	83
Edit	
Media Profile	
Print Mode	
PRINT OPTIONS	
auantity	
cron marks	92
houndary marks	92
ich lahel	92
jub luber	عر دە
nest	
submit	
RINTER	95
ACTIVE	96
Current lobs	96
Held Jobs	۵۵ مو
Reference	90 AP
Status	90
Buffered	90
Profile	
Dimensions.	
Quantity	
Copies	
Area	
File Type	
File Size	
Submitted	
User name	
Editing Single Jobs	
Profile	
Rotate	
Justify	
Mirror	
Scale	
Quantity	
Quantity Copies	100 100 100 100 100

Marker	10'
Nest Job	
Print Mode	
Editing Nest Jobs	
Center jobs horizontally	
Center iobs vertically	
Rotate jobs for best fit	
Nesting gap	
Trim lines	
Shift	
Nest automatically	
ARCHIVE	
Seti id	
General	10
Start guque automatically on startun	
Start queue automatically on startup	
Error jobs with mission fonte	
Error jobs with missing roots.	
Hold Jobs not matching queue Media	
Auto rotate to save media (Koll only)	
Keep Jobs in archive when finished	
Log mode	
Paths	
Nesting	
Conditions	
Minimum area	
Wait time	
Maximum jobs per nest	
Arrange	
Centre jobs horizontally	
Centre jobs vertically	
Rotate jobs for best fit	
Nesting gap	
Cut lines	
Shift	
Туре	
Row-based	
Default	
Interface	
Null	
File	
TCP/IP	
IP Address	
Port Address	
Timeout	
Buffer Size	
Spooler	
Parallel (Windows only)	
HP Direct (HP and Windows only)	
USB (Epson & Mac only)	
Firewire (Epson & Mac only)	
Canon (Canon only)	
Log	
Status	

Canon	
Printer state	
Remote commands	
Print Status	
Printhead Adj	
Nozzle Check	
Head Clean	
Media	
name	
source	
sheet list	
width	
length	
margins	
Printer Info	
Ink levels	
Epson	
HP	
Remote Commands	
Sync Media	
Colour Calib	
ОК	
Pending	1
Expired	
Feed Adjust	
Head Align.	
S	1
S oto Pack Editor Tool Bar	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells)	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells)	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z)	1 
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y)	
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X).	1 
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C).	
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C) Paste (Ctrl + V).	
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C) Paste (Ctrl + V) Duplicate (Ctrl + D)	
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C) Paste (Ctrl + V) Duplicate (Ctrl + D) Create Contour	
S OTO PACK EDITOR <i>Tool Bar</i> Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C) Paste (Ctrl + V) Duplicate (Ctrl + D) Create Contour Delete (Del)	
S	
S	
S	
S	1         1 <td< td=""></td<>
S	
S	
S	
S         OTO PACK EDITOR         Tool Bar         Draw (Photo Cells)         Draw (Text Cells)         Grid         Zoom         Undo (Ctrl + Z)         Redo(Ctrl + Y)         Cut (Ctrl + X)         Copy (Ctrl + C)         Paste (Ctrl + V)         Duplicate (Ctrl + D)         Create Contour         Delete (Del)         Align         Position         Group         Mirror         Order         Canvas Size         Media Source	
S	
S OTO PACK EDITOR Tool Bar Draw (Photo Cells) Draw (Text Cells) Grid Zoom Undo (Ctrl + Z) Redo(Ctrl + Y) Cut (Ctrl + X) Copy (Ctrl + C) Paste (Ctrl + V) Duplicate (Ctrl + D) Create Contour Delete (Del) Align Position Group Mirror Order Control Panel Canvas Size Media Source Drawing Options Grid size	
S	

Current Selection	
Examples	
Canvas Size	
Photo Pack Design	
Saving	
Canvas Gallery Wrap Template Design	
Liveupdate	
Profiles	
Drivers	
Log	
Setup	
Check connection	
DVD Drive	
Local Netwrok	
Mode	
ADDPAPER	
KeyInfo	
New Printer	
Costing	
HOT FOLDER	
	174
Projile Name	
Paper Name	
JOD Paramaters	
quantity	
crop marks	
job label	
cut	
super borderless	
Nest job	
PAGE POLICY	
Fit	
Fill	
Original	
Distort	
РНОТО РАСКЅ	
Examples of multi Photo Packs	
Examples of Photo Pack with text and frames	
Printing without Photo Packs	
Canvas wrap and Panoramic print	

# About this guide

This document is divided into the following chapters:

- Chapter 1 Table of contents
- Chapter 2 About this guide
- Chapter 3 Introduction
- Chapter 4 Installation
- Chapter 5 Overview
- Chapter 6 Getting started, explains how to get started.
- Chapter 7 Design, describes general operation of the Design module.
- Chapter 8 Printer, describes general operation of the Printer module.
- Chapter 9 Tools, describes general operation of the various tools available.

#### Who Should Use It

This guide is intended for users of different degrees of knowledge and experience with the Shiraz Focus software.

This guide assumes that you have some knowledge of the operating systems and the printer operation.

For more information please consult the appropriate documentations.

#### **Typographical Conventions**

This document uses the following typographical conventions:

Command and option names appear in **bold** type in definitions and examples. The names of directories, files, machines, partitions, and volumes also appear in **bold**.

Variable information appears in *italic* type. This includes user-supplied information on command lines.

Screen output and code samples appear in monospace type.

# Introduction

#### **Purpose**

The Shiraz Focus software is an integrated design & production system aimed at the professional digital printers who require producing high quality prints on high-end inkjet printers from all major printer manufacturers such as Canon, Epson and HP as well as minilabs from various vendors. It helps the user to easily and quickly create colour accurate prints that fully optimize the media and ink usage. It uses real time polling of information from these printers to control production and minimize any potential mistakes by the users. All images are colour managed to simulate an accurate representation of the final print.

A powerful photo pack editor is included that allows the user to create and modify photo pack templates. These templates can then be populated accurately and quickly with selected images. Additionally images can be edited with various tools available if required. The system uses a sophisticated ICC colour management engine for colour matching RGB, CMYK, Lab and grey scale images on the selected media. Advanced Image processing techniques are used to optimize image resolutions and quality for best output.

Production and job management is carried out by the built in printer queue system. Jobs for the same media type can be nested automatically and dynamically for the best use of the loaded media. Various nesting conditions and parameters can be set to control the nesting behaviour; furthermore users can manually edit the nest layouts if required.

Specialist features such as gallery canvas wrap with additional effects like triptych and diamond formation can easily be achieved by utilizing the associated in-built functions. Uniquely users can carry out live editing of these jobs and see the resultant effects in real time.

To help the smooth running of the system and minimize any problems, jobs not matching the currently loaded media type or size are held automatically and released once the conditions are met (media matching). The system is supplied with the full range of media profiles for the OEM range as well as many third party ones. Additional profiles can be added via automatic updating system from the Shiraz Focus cloud storage sites around the globe. Advanced users can add their own media profiles by utilizing the intuitive colour profiling module.

#### **Scope**

This guide is intended to help new users to quickly get familiar with main functions and operational procedures of the Shiraz Focus system. It can also be used as a reference guide from time to time if needed.

# **System Requirements**

Shiraz Focus software can be installed and used on the Windows XP SP3, Vista Business and windows 7 Professional, Mac OSX 10.5.8 (Intel) or higher operating systems.

Minimum hardware specifications are as follows:

2 GB Ram memory, 20 GB free hard disk, USB port, 1024 x 1280 24bit video card and screen, pointing device and DVD player. Intel Core Duo or higher processors.

The following list of image formats is supported:

TIFF, PSD, BMP, GIF, JPEG, JPEG 2000, PCX, PNG and TGA.

# Installation

#### Installing the system

Shiraz Focus is supplied on a DVD-ROM or as a download from <u>www.shiraz-software.com</u> site for both Windows and Mac OSX operating systems. If using a download run the 'Focus Installer' application. If using a DVD and Auto run is enabled on your system then the installer starts automatically when you insert the DVD-ROM into the drive. Otherwise locate the installer program that is located on the DVD-ROM and double click to start the installation program.

Once the installer has started simply follow the setup wizards to complete the installation. You should reboot your computer to complete the installation.

Please note that you must be logged-in as an Administrator for the installation procedure.

#### Uninstalling the system

To remove Shiraz Focus from a Windows computer:

1 Select Settings > Control Panel from the Start menu.

2 In the Control Panel click Add/Remove Programs and select Shiraz Focus in the list.

3 Click the Add/Remove button to remove the program.

A confirmation prompt is displayed.

To remove Shiraz Focus from a Mac OSX computer:

1 Locate the folder on the Macintosh HD: Application where Shiraz Focus is installed.

2 Run the Uninstall application and follow the instructions.

3 Drag & Drop the Focus folder onto the Trash.

#### Starting the system

Once the software has been installed a shortcut to it is created on the desktop. Double click on this to start the application.

Installation

## **Overview**

This section gives a brief overview of the various components that constitute the Shiraz Focus software. These include **Design**, **Printer**, **Nesting**, **Status**, **Photo Pack Editor**, **Hot Folder** and **Image Editor**. Once you have covered this section you should have a clearer idea of the Shiraz Focus system and its functionalities. Each of these modules will then be covered in greater details in subsequent chapters.

#### Design

As the name suggests it is here that you design and prepare your jobs for output. Your image libraries can be added to the favourite list for quick access. You can select from a list of categories of photo pack templates. Additional photo packs can be easily added to the list by using the **Photo Pack Editor** included.

Once a photo pack has been selected then the user can simply drag image thumbnails from the thumbnails view onto the photo cells to populate them. Multiple cells can be selected to hold the same images if required. Images can be automatically made to **fit** or **fill** the photo cells. Additional image editing such as rotation, mirroring and zoom & pan can be applied to these cells if required. Images can also be retouched in the powerful and easy to use Image Editor if needed. Optional print marks such as crop marks and job labels can be automatically added to jobs if required.

#### **Printer**

Once images have been prepared they can be submitted to the print queue for printing. The integrated print server manages all the incoming jobs and will process these jobs for output. Jobs can be printed single or nested automatically for best use of the loaded media. Nested jobs can be manually edited by the user if required.

Jobs that do not match the currently loaded media type or size will be held automatically until the right conditions are met. The system constantly checks the printer status for loaded media size/type, ink levels and other printer conditions. These information are then used to check against jobs in the queue to make sure that all jobs match the current conditions and would print with no problems. If any potential problems are detected then the system would warn the user of any impending issues hence minimizing any costly mistakes.

Once print jobs have been successfully processed they will then be archived for future resubmission if needed.

#### Nesting

Jobs that are sent to the print queue can be submitted with their nest attributes switched on. Jobs with the same media type are then grouped and nested together for the best use of the currently loaded media size. Various nest conditions and parameters can be set as default to control the nesting behaviour. These can include minimum area coverage, justification and trimming arrangement. Nested jobs can be manually

edited by the user to suit their requirements. Individual jobs can be added or removed from the nest group if required.

Nesting jobs are dynamic and fluid, meaning that they will change on the fly as various parameters change or whenever a new job is added or removed. Nesting jobs can be locked by the user to prevent any more changes if required. Also nest jobs that have been manually edited are automatically locked by the system but can be unlocked by the user if needed. Nest jobs that have been processed and printed (archived) are kept intact and can be resubmitted as a group for further printing if needed.

#### **Status**

Information fed back from the printer is used by the system to check and direct the print production as well as informing the user about various printer conditions such as ink levels, loaded media etc. Depending on the printer's built-in features the system can also control media calibration, nozzle check and head cleaning.

Current printer state is highlighted at all time and any problems such as a connection error or open door is immediately relayed to the user's attention.

Messages from the printer are divided to three categories. Error (Red) messages are critical and would mean no printing will be possible. Warning (Amber) messages point to possible issues that might arise in the future, printing is still possible. Ready (Blue) messages indicate normal operating conditions and all printing can be done without any potential issues.

#### **Photo Pack Editor**

Users can create and use their own photo pack templates by using the editor included. This powerful tool includes many functions that allow for easy and accurate creation of templates. Text boxes could also easily be added to contain any free form text or be linked to a photo element in order to use the Exif data or file information.

Special functions for creating canvas wrap and panoramic type printing are also included. Borderless templates can also be made by specifying the relevant parameters. Any number of photo pack categories can be created that enables the user to logically and easily organize their templates.

# **Getting Started**

The Shiraz Focus system is designed to be as easy as possible to setup and operate with minimal training or instructions required. As far as it is possible all actions required by the system from the user are carried out in a logical and easy to follow manner.

The software is fully configurable and allows the user to utilize it in either a simple or a very demanding production workflow environment. At its heart there are many sophisticated and state of the art technologies that hides all the hassle and complexity of printing and managing high quality images on the latest inkjet printers from all major manufacturers.

In this chapter we will first cover the initial setup of the system as well as all the options and preferences available and will conclude with an actual example of a simple job from start to finish. This should hopefully familiarize you with the working and ethos of the system.

In the following chapters we will then cover all the available features of the Shiraz Focus software in more depth. You should first cover this chapter before moving on to the detailed area of the manual.

#### **Queue wizard**

The very first time that the Shiraz Focus is run the **Queue wizard** system is called to help the user in setting up the system for their particular printer and environment. Simply follow the wizard's step by step guide to create the default printer queue. This process can be run at any time later on to change the configuration.

00	new queue v	wizard		
	select printer type			
	✓ <none selected=""></none>			\$
F	Epson HP Raster	k		
				_
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

You will first need to select the printer make from the list presented. Once you have selected the one that you require click **Next** to go on to the next step. Click **Back** if you have made a mistake in your selection.

You will then be presented with the list of printer models that are supported for the previously selected manufacturer.

new queue wizard	select printer model			
	<none selected=""></none>			-
Ţ	Stylus Pro 7450 Stylus Pro 7600 Dye Stylus Pro 7600 Pigment Stylus Pro 7800 Stylus Pro 7880 Stylus Pro 7880 Stylus Pro 7800 Stylus Pro 9400 Stylus Pro 9450			4 
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

Now select the printer model required and click **Next**. The installer wizard will now download and install the latest Shiraz printer drivers for the selected model from the cloud storage on the internet or from the installer DVD if no internet connection is available.

	printer driver			
	Checking printer driver, plea	ise wait		
Driver update	8 23	1		
Jownloading driver	30%			
Downloading driver				
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

Next the user can download the required media profiles for their printer from the Shiraz profile library online or the media profile DVD if there are no internet connections available.

new queue wizard				8 23
	media profile			
	add media profiles		Download	1
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

Click on the Download button to initiate the Liveupdate application launch that enables the users to select and download media profiles.

×		*	5	×	Find:		Search	]
Media pro	files				Version	Status	Available	
▲ Epson								
🖌 🖌 🖉	Stylus Pro	7900						
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Eco	nomy 800M Ca	nvas 1440		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Eco	nomy 800M Ca	nvas 720		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Eleg	ance Velvet Pla	tinum 1440		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Elec	ance Velvet Pla	tinum 2880		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Lyve	e Canvas 1440			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Lyve	e Canvas 720			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Opt	ica One 1440			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Opt	ica One 2880			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Vib	ance Rag 1440			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Vib	ance Rag 2880			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Br	eathing Vib	ance Rag 720			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 C	anson Baryta	a Photographic	ue 310g 1440		new	12025.1	
	🔽 🖌 C	anson Baryta	a Photographic	ue 310g 2880		new	12025.1	
	🔽 🖌 C	anson Baryta	a Photographic	ue 310g 720		new	12025.1	
	🔽 🖌 C	hromata Wh	ite Canvas 1440	1		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 C	hromata Wh	ite Canvas 720			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	son Double	weight Matte P	aper 1440		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Double	weight Matte P	aper 360		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Double	weight Matte P	aper 720		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Enhanc	ed Matte Pape	1440		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Enhanc	ed Matte Pape	2880		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Enhanc	ed Matte Pape	360		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Enhanc	ed Matte Pape	720		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Matte E	Backlit Film 144	)		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Matte E	Backlit Film 288	)		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Matte E	Backlit Film 720			new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Premiu	m Canvas Satir	1440		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Premiu	m Canvas Satir	720		new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Premiu	m Glossy Phote	o Paper (250) 1440	)	new	11340.1	
	🔽 🖌 Ep	oson Premiu	m Glossy Phote	Paper (250) 2880	)	new	11340.1	

Users can select manually by checking from the list of profiles or by using the various selection options and search feature. Once selected then click on the Download button to start the downloading process.

In the next stage based on the printer make and model selected so far as well as the operating system being used the system will show you the choices of printer interface types available.

	select printer	interface		
	sciece printer	meridee		
	Spooler			<b>-</b>
	<none selected=""></none>			
-	Null File			
	TCP/IP			
	Spooler			
		< Pack	Nexts	Cancel
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

Interface type describes the actual physical connection from the host computer to the printer. The choices here is very much dependent on the printer make selected.

- **Null** this interface type is not a physical one and is only used for testing purposes. There are no parameters available for this selection.
- File this instructs the system to send the print data to a file in a selected folder location.
- **TCP/IP** this type of interface uses an Ethernet type connection and requires the IP address of the printer.

new queue wizard					l	8 23
	printer inte	erface se	tting			
	tcp/ip setting					
-	ip address	192.168.1_	. 179			
	port number	9100				
	timeout	1 sec		* *		
4	buffer size	48 KB				
			< Back	Ne	d >	Cancel

- IP Address IP address of the printer on the network in 999.999.999.999 format. Make sure the address has the same domain range as the computer.
- Port Number the port number of the Print-Server on the printer where direct binary printing is done. Most Print-Servers use 9100 as their port, however some may be different. Refer to the print server documentation for the correct port number.
- Timeout timeout value in seconds which has to expire before an I/O error occurs if the receiving node is not responding or accepting data. For maximum throughput speed set this timeout to 0, effectively disabling timeout checks.
- Buffer Size size of TCP/IP internal buffer which is used to store data before outputting packets on the actual I/O channel. The optimum size is dependent on system and will require some trial. The default 48KB will work best on most systems.
- **Spooler** this interface outputs to a system spooler found on the computer. Spoolers are usually created by installing the printer drivers supplied by the printer manufacturers. The actual spooler's interface port type can be set to any type supported by the operating system such as USB, FireWire, TCP/IP, etc.

The Shiraz Focus system only uses these spoolers as a communication channel and bypasses all their image processing and colour management features. This option should only be used if there are no other direct connections available from the software such as Epson stylus Pro printers with a USB or FireWire connection on the Windows operating system.

Once this option is selected then the drop down menu will list all available printer spoolers on the computer. Select the required spooler from this list.

o new queue wizard				? × ``
	printer inte	rface setting		
	spooler setting			
-	spooler name	Epson Universal Laser P6	(Copy 2)	<b>-</b>
Ţ		Snagit 11 Shiraz_RIP_Server_EPSO Shiraz_RIP_Server_EPSO Samsung CLP-300 Series NPI149C4A (HP Designjet Microsoft XPS Document 1 HP DesignJet Z6100 HP Designjet Z3200 24m Fax	N_7900_spoole N_7890_spoole t Z6200ps 60in F Writer Photo	r Photo)
		Epson Universal Laser P6	(Copy 2)	*
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

- **Parallel (Windows only)** this is an old interface type that is not used any longer on modern printers as it is very slow and unreliable. It is only listed here for legacy reason.
- HP Direct (HP and Windows only) this is a direct USB connection for HP Z-series printers on Windows platform. We currently do not recommend this option as it has proven to be unreliable in our lab tests when running big batch of jobs.
- **Canon (Canon only)** this is a special interface type for the Canon range of printers. Regardless of the actual physical connection between the computer and the printer it is recommended to use this option for all Canon printers.

new queue wizard	printer interface setting Canon io setting device name Printer List Please select a printer: Vione Selected> Vione Se		
	< Back	Next >	Cancel

18

Click on the 'find' button next to the **Device Name** entry to start the system scanning for all Canon devices.

The system will now automatically find and list all Canon printers connected to the computer directly (USB, FireWire) or on the network (TCP/IP). Now select the printer from the list shown.

• USB (Mac only) – this interface type is for direct USB connections on the Mac.

az new queue wizard				
<b>1</b>	Printer interface se	ettings:		
•	Device name:	<ivone :<="" td=""><td>selected&gt;</td><td>· ···</td></ivone>	selected>	· ···
			U	
Help	<	Back	Next >	Cancel

Click on the 'find' button next to the drop down menu to search for all connected USB printers. Now select the required one and click OK.

• **Epson FireWire (Mac and Epson only)** – this option is only valid for the Epson Stylus Po printers connected to a Mac computer via FireWire port. The selection procedure is exactly the same as the USB connection above.

At the end of the wizard a summary of the configuration made is shown for confirmation.

new queue wizard				8 23
	Summary			
	Queue name	EPSON_STYLUS_PRO_79	900	
	Printer type	Epson		
	Printer model	Stylus Pro 7900		
	Interface type	TCP/IP		
	Port monitor	None		
		< Back	Finish	Cancel

If you are happy with your selections then click on the **Finish** button to end and accept the configuration.

You can run this procedure at any time by selecting **New Printer** option from the **Tools** menu available in the main window. This will be covered later in this manual.

You are now ready to start working with Shiraz Focus software and get your first print job out.

## **Example Job**

On the successful completion of the system setup detailed above the main window of the Shiraz Focus system will be displayed as shown below.

ocus N		Original PhotoPac
Kalas hofe Nadas hofe Nadas hofe	Drop image(s) here	Image: State of the state

The first step is to select the mode of operation that we want to work with. This is done by clicking on the options available on the tool bar as shown below:



21

**Original** –Use this mode for images that have already been sized and prepared. Simply drag & drop images on to the work area. Further editing can be carried out on these images if required.

**PhotoPac** – In this mode the images can be placed on the selected photo packs where they will be automatically adjusted for the given templates. Additional editing can be carried on these images if needed.

**Wall Art** – This optional mode enables users to design very sophisticated canvas gallery wraps in a free format way. It is also possible to output the background image as wall paper tiles.

In our example we will use the PhotoPack mode to create our job. On the selection of this mode the list of photo pack categories available are displayed on the right hand side of the window.



Click on any of these categories to display the list of photo packs within them.



Next select the actual photo pack required from the list by simply clicking on it.



The next step would be to browse for the images that we want to use on this photo pack. To do this click on the Browser tab to first select it and then browse your system for the image folder.



In this case we have selected the Sample folder located in the Focus program folder. Once the folder is selected the system scans for all supported images within it. As images are found their thumbnails are generated and displayed.

To add the folder to the favourite list for easy access next time right-click on the selected folder and select this option.

As you can see there are a number photo cells with different dimensions within this photo pack. We can populate a number of these cells with the same image by first selecting them as a group. To select a number of cells, first hold the **Control** key and then click on the cells required. Selected cells are then highlighted in red.



Once you have finished with the selection, drag & drop the required image onto any of the selected cells or simply double-click on it as illustrated below. In a similar way populate the other cells with other images.



In the next stage, we can edit the image with respect to the cell. Again multiple selections can be edited simultaneously. In this example we would want to zoom in onto the image and then use the pan function to move the image around the cell to block out image areas not wanted.



Once the editing has been done we can then move on to the next step and select the media profile for the media that we want to print on.

The loaded media profiles are listed under the Media Profile tab as shown below. Depending on the printer make & model there might be multiple profiles for each media. These are for the various print modes that the printer supports.



Simply click on the media profile to select. Media profile names also imply the print mode that will be used. To change the print mode, double-click on the profile name to display the print mode table as shown.

	Parameter	Value
Ö	Resolution	720 x 1440
	Print Direction	Bi-Directional 🔻
õ	Feed Adjustment	Bi-Directional
	Feed Adjustment Offset	Uni-Directional
Ô	Print Quality	Microweave High Quality
	Paper Source	Roll Paper
	Min Scan Time	000ms

For example you can change the 'Print Direction' setting to be 'Uni-Directional' as shown above.

In the final stage you can select from the list of print options available such as quantity and crop marks.

27



In our particular example here we have opted for quantity of 2, 'crop marks' and 'job nest' options enabled. But before we go ahead and submit the job for printing we can do a visual check to see that everything is Ok with the current system status and there are no potential issues. To do this take a look at the bottom right corner of the window where the Info Bar is located.

• HP Premi	um Instant Dry Satin Best	🛛 📊 20x30 cm va	ations: 300.000 x 200.000 mm	610.0	00 mm Roll 🔄 HP_DESIGNJET_3	Z3200_24	🗊 🗭 Printer connection error.
Media Type	Photo Pack De	etails	Media Size & Type		Printer queue		Printer Status

- **Media Type** the information shown here is the actual name of the currently selected media profile. If it matches what is actually loaded on the printer itself then a green tick is also highlighted next to it. If it does not then a red cross is shown instead. If there is no information about the type of media loaded then no symbol will be shown.
- **Photo Pack Details** Name of the currently selected photo pack and its dimensions. The blue flag also indicates that all placed images print resolution (PPI) are good and there will not be any issues with the print quality.
- Media Size The actual media type (Roll or Sheet) and its actual value is shown here.
- **Printer** name and model of the printer that the system is currently configured for.

• **Printer Status** – the current state of the printer. In this case it is in the Ready state indicating that printing can go ahead with no problems.

In our example here you will notice that the printer status is in error mode because there is a connection problem. Although the job can still be submitted but it will ne be printed until the problem is resolved. Assuming that the issue has been resolved we can go ahead with submitting the job to the printer queue.

Click on the big print button to start processing and submitting the job to the printer queue for output. The system will now show a progress bar and showing the name of the images on the photo pack being processed.

Processing job	8 23
Processing image Hammers	smith Bridge.jpg (7/11)
	52%
6	Cancel

All images are now processed including the application of all the relevant ICC profiles and image optimizations to create the final output image.

Once the job has been submitted to the print queue click on the Printer tab and you should see the nest job listed in the Active tab section.

	<b>= •</b>	c •												
	ent jobs (1/1 job, 2 images)													
efe	rence	Status Buffered	Profile	Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File Type	File Size	Submitted	User name	Priority		
y	Nest-12-03-12-03-12-230	Ready	HP Premium Instant Dry Satin Bes	t 449.920 x 319.970 (76.40%)	1	1	0.144 sqm	Nest	13 6 1 10	2012-03-12 12:03:12	Ramin 15	Low		-
	20120312_120308.64-2-2	Ready	HP Premium Instant Dry Satin Best HP Premium Instant Dry Satin Best	219.960 x 319.970 219.960 x 319.970	1	1	0.070 sqm	TIFF	43.6 MB	2012-03-12 12:03:10	Ramin ið	Low		
														~
														-
														-
														1
														0
														nia
														-
ы	inhe (0 tohr () imagen)													
der	anna Status Ruffer	red Profile	Dimensions Quantity Conies	Area File Turne	File Size	Submitted	liter na	me						ing.
	chec owned owned	110100	enteriorio quinti copici	inter i fine i fipe	The sale	Jobrinted	02010							
														×.
														19
el	og													
13	12:02:52] job Nest-12:03-11:58-50 12:03:11] Job 20120312_120308 pr	-099 will be deleted												
)3 )3	12:03:11] job 20120312_120308.6f 12:03:12] New job submitted: 2012	new job found 0312_120308.tf											10 3 10 3	
													A. A. A. A.	
													- Hin - Hin - Hin	

The nest job contains the two jobs arranged for the best fit on the currently loaded media as shown by the image thumbnail at the bottom right corner. To edit the actual nest double click on the nest job entry to open the 'editing nest' window.

Editing nest: Nest-12-03-12-03-12-230	2 <b>x</b>
	Grid         Show         Snap         Size:       5.00         Size:       5.00         Arrangement       Center jobs horizontally         Center jobs vertically       Rotate jobs for best fit         Nesting gap:       10.00         Cut lines:       None         Shift       Image         Top:       0.00         Selected image       Name:         Dimensions:       449.92 x 319.97, rotation: 0         X:       0.00         Y:       0.00         West summary         Reference:       Nest summary         Reference:       HeP Premium Instant Dry Satin Best         Items:       2         Area:       449.92 x 319.97 (0.144 sq m)         Coverage:       76.40%         Locked       Ok

In here you can move and rotate images within the nest in anyway required. You can also change the nesting parameters available here and then use the 'Nest Automatically' button to get different nesting arrangement. Click again to get a different arrangement. Examine the nesting statistics displayed to help you decide the best arrangement.

To start the queue that in turn starts processing and printing all jobs found in the Active tab click on the Play button at the top left corner of the main window. Alternatively right click on the nest job entry and select the 'Print job' option. This will only process the currently selected job.

rt queue vent job	s (1/1 job, 2 mages)											
ference	Status         8           st12:03.12.201.12.202         0 </th <th>Affered Problem Instant Dry Safe 149 Previous Instant Dry Safe 149 Premium Instant Dry Safe 149 Premium Instant Dry Safe</th> <th>Dimensions 8est 499,20 x 319,970 (76.40%) 8est 219,560 x 319,970 lest 219,960 x 319,970</th> <th>Quantity 1 1</th> <th>Copies 1 1 1</th> <th>Area File Type 0.144 sqm Nest 0.070 sqm TIFF 0.070 sqm TIFF</th> <th>File Size 43.6 MB 43.6 MB</th> <th>Submitted 2012-03-12 12:03:12 2012-03-12 12:03:10 2012-03-12 12:03:10</th> <th>User name Ramin 15 Ramin 15 Ramin 15</th> <th>Priofly Low Low Low</th> <th></th> <th>* * * * = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =</th>	Affered Problem Instant Dry Safe 149 Previous Instant Dry Safe 149 Premium Instant Dry Safe 149 Premium Instant Dry Safe	Dimensions 8est 499,20 x 319,970 (76.40%) 8est 219,560 x 319,970 lest 219,960 x 319,970	Quantity 1 1	Copies 1 1 1	Area File Type 0.144 sqm Nest 0.070 sqm TIFF 0.070 sqm TIFF	File Size 43.6 MB 43.6 MB	Submitted 2012-03-12 12:03:12 2012-03-12 12:03:10 2012-03-12 12:03:10	User name Ramin 15 Ramin 15 Ramin 15	Priofly Low Low Low		* * * * = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =
ljobs (	0 polos, 0 mages) Status Buffered Profi	le Dimensions Quantity C	opies Area File Type	File Size	Submitted	User name						4 I I M
log 3 18:06: 3 18:06: 3 18:06: 3 18:06: 3 18:06: 3 18:06:	<ol> <li>Liang HADP hardware protection key 80 Unregatimed Cargo - Prints left: 107.</li> <li>Direkt Pristion (1998)</li> <li>CHR Drains set to Address 80 CHR Drains are to Address</li> <li>CHR Drains are to Address</li> </ol>										4. 4.	

Once the job has been processed and printed, it will be moved to the Archive area of the queue where it can be resubmitted back to the Active folder for more printing.

ile Tools Help		
itved jobs (1/1 job, 2 images)		
erence Status Buffered Profile Dimensions Quantity Copies Area	File Type File Size User name Pr	Printed
Rest 12-03-12-03-12-230 Done     Re Premium Instant Dry Satis Best 449.920 x 319.970 (76.40%) 1     1     0.144	sąm nest Kamin O Z	012-03-12 18:13:39
		move job to active
Ng		
<b>bg</b> .16.12.30 (Facesare pb		
bit 320         Faccoure ph           18:323         Faccoure ph           18:323         Faccoure ph           18:324         Faccoure ph		
bit 133         Nonserry ph           161.324         Nonserry ph           161.334         Nonserry ph           161.334         Nonserry ph		
Bit 323         Assessmen gab           18:1.52         Assessmen gab		
Not           18.1.520         Processing gal           18.1.521         pro 21.5112         23.000 dr l-1 Processing           18.1.523         pro 21.5112         23.000 dr l-1 Processing           18.1.524         pro 21.5112         23.000 dr l-1 Processing           18.1.524         pro 21.5112         23.000 dr l-1 Processing           18.1.524         pro 21.5112         23.000 dr l-1 Profession           18.1.524         pro 21.5112 dr l-1 Profession         Profession           18.1.524         protect - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -		
Stat 201         Incomerginghin.           316.323         Property ghin.           316.333         Property ghin.           316.334         Property ghin.           316.335         Property ghin.           316.334         Property ghin.           316.335         Property ghin.           316.337         Property ghin.           316.337         Property ghin.           316.337         Property ghin.           316.337         Property ghin.		
Statistics         Association gale           18:12:20         Processing gale         18:12:20         Processing gale           18:12:20         Processing gale         18:12:20         Processing gale           18:12:20         Processing gale         18:12:20         Processing gale           18:13:24         Processing gale         18:12:24         Processing gale		

#### **Preferences**

Before starting to work with the Focus application you should first examine and if needed change any of the preferences needed. You can open the Preferences window by selecting this option from the File menu.

General	Profile	Crop Marks	Job Label	Boundary Marks	Frame	Fotoba Marks			
measurem	ient unit			Millimetre			•		
language				English	English 👻				
tiff byte o	order			Windows (lit	Windows (little-endian)				
auto print	er status			On	On 🔹				
colour eng	gine			Adobe	Adobe 👻				
cutting me	ethod			Job			-		
Help					ſ	ОК	Cancel		

#### General

In this tab there are four settings available that can be changed by the user.

- **measurement unit** select from the drop down list the unit setting for the Shiraz Focus system. You can select from the metric or imperial options available here.
- language the foreign language setting for the complete system can be set here.
- **tiff byte order** this is an option for the creation of the Tiff data from the Focus system. This option is only relevant for the Minilab drivers.
- **auto printer status** to switch off the live polling of data from the connected printer set this option to Off. This will then disable the systems communication with the printer. Please see the Status documentation for more details. This option should normally be On unless there is a system problem.
- colour engine select from the list of available CMM engines for managing the Focus colour transformations.

cutting method - the selection here controls the cutting behaviour of the system. If set to Jobs then • the cutting occurs after the complete job is finished printing. If set to Rows then the cutting occurs after each row of the print is done.

After any changes here you must restart the system for these to take effect.

#### **Profile**

32

In this tab the user can set their own preferred settings for the input ICC profiles for various colour spaces as well as the rendering intent used.

Drafia	C. N. I.		Develop Marke	-	Estable Made	
General Profile	Crop Marks	Job Label	Boundary Marks	Frame	Fotoba Marks	
ab input			Default			•
grey input			Default			•
gb input			Default			•
mky input			Default			•
monitor output			Default			•
endering intent			Default			•
Use Embedded Pro	ofile					
colour manage thumbr	nails		To Monitor			•
Help				ſ	ок	Cancel

As default the Shiraz Focus system uses its own generic ICC input profiles that might not be suitable for your type of workflow. For example if you would want to use your own digital camera or scanner profile then first of all copy its ICC profiles to the Shiraz Focus input profile folder located in a similar path as the one shown below.

For Windows OS ----- \Shiraz\Focus\profile\input

For Mac OSX OS ------ Applications:Focus:profile:input

Now click on the **RGB Input** drop down menu and select the profile just copied.

Prefrences		?
General Profile		
Lab Input	Default	~
Grey Input	Default	~
RGB Input	Default	~
CMYK Input	ECI-RGB.V1.0.icc FF_Frontier_Scan_Negative.icc FF_Frontier_Scan_Reversal.icc	~
Rendering Intent	Fuji_Frontier-Scanner_V2.icc	
Use Embedded Profile	Photo_RGB_Print.icm PS APPLE.icc	≡
Help	RGB to Gray.icm rgbSpot.icc sRGB IEC61966-2.1.icc	~

From now on any RGB image without embedded profile would have this input profile assigned to it. This can correspondingly be configured for all the other colour spaces listed here.

In a similar way you can set the ICC profile for the monitor being used by first copying the profile to the 'monitor' profile located under the 'profile' folder and then selecting from the 'monitor output' drop down menu. This ensures that all images are accurately previewed on your screen.

**Rendering Intent** - Converting colours to a different colour space usually involves an adjustment of the colours to accommodate the gamut of the destination colour space. Different translation methods use different rules to determine how the source colours are adjusted; for example, colours that fall inside the destination gamut may remain unchanged, or they may be adjusted to preserve the original range of visual relationships as translated to a smaller destination gamut. These translation methods are known as rendering intents because each technique is optimized for a different intended use of colour graphics. There are four main options available here as explained below.

- Perceptual rendering attempts to compress the gamut of the source (image) space into the gamut of the destination (printer)space in such a way that the overall relationships between the colours and hence the overall image appearance is preserved, even though all the colours may change in the process. Perceptual intent will produce prints with accurate hue and while overall saturation levels may be a bit less. In addition, this method reduces artefacts like banding in images like blue skies. Typically perceptual rendering de-saturates all colours to bring the out-of-gamut colours into the target gamut while more or less maintaining the overall relationship between colours. Preserving the relationship between colours helps preserve the overall appearance of images. This is the default setting of the system and should be used normally.
- **Relative Colorimetric** rendering translate the white of the source to the white of the output, and shift all the other colours accordingly. Then it matches the adjusted colours in the source space that are inside the gamut of the target space exactly, and clips out-of-gamut colours to the nearest

reproducible hue, sacrificing lightness and saturation. Use this rendering method in certain cases where reproducing accurate colours is vital. This rendering intent is often used when your original image contains only a narrow range of colours.

- Absolute Colorimetric rendering would reproduce the colours as close as possible, similar to the Relative Colorimetric except that this rendering intent does not account for the human eye's ability to adapt to the surrounding paper white. This would mean that the system might print dots in what is usually the white area of the image order to simulate the paper white.
- Saturation rendering maps the saturated primary colours in the source space to the saturated primary colours in the target space, without considering the differences in hue, saturation, or lightness. It's designed for rendering business graphics like screen captures and business graphics, where we simply want vivid colours and aren't particularly concerned as to exactly what those colours are.

**Use Embedded Profile** option instructs the system to use any embedded profiles, if any, found within images as the input profile. This would then override the system's input profile setting. The default setting is on.

**colour manage thumbnails** – the user can control the system behaviour when generating the thumbnails. If 'To Monitor' is selected then all images are colour managed according to the monitor profile set. 'To Printer' setting means that images are colour managed by also applying the printer profile to 'soft proof'. If 'No' is selected then image thumbnails are not colour managed.

#### **Crop Marks**

Choose from the different shaped crop marks available here.

eneral F	Profile	Crop Marks	Job Label	Bound	dary Marks	Frame	Fotoba Marks	
Shape								
		© , , ,		⊚[	۲ ۲			
ength					10 mm			
nickness					1 pts			×
lip margin					2 mm			×
leed size					0 mm			×
	_							

You can also change their lengths and thickness if required.

#### **Job Label**

The user can choose the kind of job information that is printed along with the job when the Job Label option is selected in the Print Options tab.

Preference	es					
General	Profile	Crop Marks	Job Label	Boundary Marks	Frame	Fotoba Marks
🔽 job refe	erence	🔽 media t	ype	V job size	🔽 d	ate/time
comment						
overlay						
font size	6 pts					×
placement	Middle				•	
position	Bottom					•
					ОК	Cancel

Additional user defined information can be printed alongside the job label by using the Comment entry.

Overlay text entered here will be printed across the print and can be used for marking the prints with labels such as 'Confidential'.

The print labels size and placement can be set here by changing the relevant parameters here.

#### **Boundary Marks**

The parameters available in this tab control the various ways that boundary marks around output prints are drawn.

oundary Marks Frame Fotoba Marks
pts
olid
liter

Line thickness values, in points, set here decide the thickness of the lines used to draw the boundary box.

Solid or dashed lines can be used for drawing the boundary depending on the option set for the Line Type.

If thick lines are used for drawing then the corner types where the straight lines intersect can be configured by the Corner Type option available here.

#### Frame

The value set for this option here dictates the size of the frame (white space) that is placed around the printed image.

#### **Fotoba Marks**

Special trim marks that are used by the automatic XY cutters can be placed around output prints by selecting this option.
#### **Profile List**

37

To customize your media profile list select this option from the **Profile** drop down menu. Here you can decide which profiles to show in the main Focus module and optionally assign aliases for them. This option is usually useful to users that only use a few media profiles and want to assign their own names for them.

] S	elect Favorite Profiles		? 🔀
	Name	Alias	Favorite
60	Fujifilm Satin Adhesive Vinyl Best		
61	Fujifilm Satin Adhesive Vinyl Enhanced		
62	Fujifilm Satin Adhesive Vinyl Production		
63	Fujifilm Satin Photo Paper sheet Best		
64	Fujifilm Satin Photo Paper sheet Enhanced		
65	HP Artist Matte Canvas Best	Paper 1	
66	HP Artist Matte Canvas Enhanced	Paper2	
67	HP Artist Matte Canvas Production	Paper3	
68	HP Hahnemule Smooth Fine Art Paper Best	Paper4	
69	HP Hahnemule Smooth Fine Art Paper Enhanced		
70	HP Hahnemule Smooth Fine Art Paper Production		
71	HP Hahnemule Textured Fine Art Paper Best		
72	HP Hahnemule Textured Fine Art Paper Enhanced		
<	1111		>
S	Select All Select None		)k Cancel

To select your preferred list of profiles tick the **Favorite** box and optionally enter an **Alias** for it. Click **OK** to save the list and the media profile list will now be refreshed to reflect the changes.

We are now ready to look at the main modules of the Shiraz Focus system and in the following chapters we will cover in full details all aspects of the system.

The system comprises of two main distinct areas, namely **Design** and **Printer**. Use the **Design** tab for the creation of your photo layouts (jobs) and submit these jobs for output to the print queue (**Printer**).

Let's take a closer and detailed look at each of these areas in more details starting with the Design.

## Design

38

This is the main module for creating your print jobs. All the controls are logically and clearly laid out so as to make the process fast and easy. All editing are done interactively and the resultant jobs are previewed very accurately to reflect the expected print results. Images are simply dragged & dropped from the image libraries previously added to the system by the user. Real time information from the printer is highlighted here to keep the user informed at all times.

The **Design** window is organized into four main sections as illustrated below.



- 1. Control Panel the main functions for selecting and manipulating photo packs are located here.
- 2. Layout Area selected photo packs and their associated images are previewed in this area.
- 3. Items List thumbnails of various items utilized within the job are visually listed here.
- 4. Info Bar information about the current setup and printer status is highlighted here.
- 5. **Mode** the three operational mode of the software can be selected here.

The software is designed to enable users to create their designs in as few steps as possible. These steps are organized in a logical order.

## **Image Browser**

Use this tab to browse for images from various folders on your computer, removable storage devices and network connections.



Once an image folder is selected then the system will scan and add the thumbnail of all supported images found to the Image List area.

The user can abort the scanning by clicking on the **Cancel** button. Once the images have been loaded into the system, the full path name of the folder will be shown and the users can right-click on the selected folder to add it to their favourites list.



The system will automatically detect and scan for images whenever a removable device such as USB pen drives or memory cards are inserted in the computer.

The system will then cache all the image thumbnails into the memory for faster loading whenever the list is selected subsequently. These libraries will reside on the system until they are removed by the user. To remove any of these library, right-click on their name and select **Delete**.



40

# Mode

The system can be operated in three distinct modes. Each of these modes are designed for specific type of jobs. These three modes are described in great details in the following sections.

## Original

Use this mode to print images in their default format. This mode is designed for users who usually prepare their images in their favourite image editing applications and only require the software to print them optimally.



Simply select the required images and drop them on the layout area.

Once the images have been dropped they are previewed in the layout area and users can browse through them by using the spinner. The total number of images selected is indicated in the spinner.



Images can be easily scaled up or down by using the scale factor option in the Edit Mode tab. The print size of each image and their associated PPI (Pixel Per Inch) values are shown in the Info Bar as well the tooltip.



A blue flag indicates that image resolution is high enough for the current print size. An orange flag points to a borderline image quality and users should be wary of possible print issues. Red flag means that image quality is below standard and system will warn users before proceeding.

## **PhotoPac**

The list of current photo pack templates that are available on the system are listed here. These are divided into many distinct groups that can also be expanded by the users. To select any of these templates simply click on their name.

More templates can be added to the list by using the **Photo Pack Editor** included with the system.

Canvas wra Cascade Contact sh	eet		Browser
Frame and Panoramic multiple  Sheet Frame and	less rd		Templates
single	rd		
		•	
10 x 12 in	16 x 20 in		
24 x 30 in	30 x 40 cm		
A1	Arch D	E	
B2	Super A1		
Sumar A2		•	

Clicking on the template name will select it as the current layout as shown below.

**Note:** By selecting any template the system will automatically erase the previous layout and displays the new empty one.

#### Single

These photo packs as the name suggests can only contain one image at a time. Standard photo sizes such as(  $5 \times 7$ ) or ( $10 \times 12$ ) can easily be created this way.



To select any of the photo packs listed here simply click on its name in the list. The system will now display a blank layout of the selected photo pack.

To populate the photo pack simply drag & drop a photo from the **Image List** area onto it. Images are automatically 'filled' to the size of the photo pack selected. This is the default behaviour of the system but can be changed if required. (see **Image Edit**)

It is also possible to drag & drop a selection of images onto the layout. This would then result in the system creating multiple jobs with the same settings. A spinner with the total number of jobs and the current job number is also displayed at the bottom right corner of the photo pack.



To select a different job simply use the spinner to navigate to the required one. These jobs can be further edited and manipulated if required (image editing will be covered in the next section).



Please note that any image editing carried out is only applied to the currently selected job. If you want to apply the same editing to all the other jobs in the stack then press the Shift key when clicking on the photo

pack. A dotted line will now be shown to indicate that you have selected the group and all changes will also be applied to the rest of the group.

### Multiple

Select this category to list the corresponding templates. Now click on one of the ones listed to select it. Multi packs can include a number of different cell sizes that can be loaded with the same or different images.



To select any of the photo cell simply click anywhere within its perimeter. Selected photo elements are highlighted in red. To select multiple elements hold the Control key (Windows)/Command Key (Mac) and click on the ones required. If you now drag an image on any of the currently selected one they will all be loaded with same image. Alternatively double-click on the image required and all the selected photo cells will be loaded alike. The rest of the photo elements can be filled in the same manner.

By default the images will use the **Fill** option when loading and will also be rotated for best fit if required. The current selection items will remain intact to allow the user to change the image quickly or apply any image editing on all selected cells simultaneously.

cus 🔊	e () · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Original PhotoPac Well Art
Normer L De La Constante L De	Shiraz	Image: State of the state o
	Shiraz	Beiter glass M Expert Names A COEDCALM COEDCALM
as hrafte LOptons		Cont II Soci, 592,596 Relig.

Similarly to fill the rest of the photo pack first select the cells required and then drag the image onto any of the selected items.



If a selection of images is dragged onto the selected cells in a photo pack then the system will present the user with two choices as shown below.



If the **Multiple** option is selected then each image will occupy a separate photo pack. A number of photo pack equivalent to the number of images selected will be automatically created. Use the spinner to navigate to the required photo pack.



If the Single **option** is selected then the selected images will each occupy a single photo cell.



If there are more images than photo cells on the photo pack then multiple photo pack copies will be created automatically. To remove images from the photo pack select and then click on the Delete key on your keyboard.

## **Canvas Gallery Wraps**

These are special type of photo packs that enable automatic canvas gallery wrap production. An example of this is shown below.

49

Focus 🔊 🔍		Original PhotoPace Well Art	
at Mode		Ri 38mm wunderbars:     Carvas wrap     Carvas wrap     Carvade     Carvade	
Amera fane typ - may may may americ amer		I Fore and test Mentalize Processic Mentalize Menta	
eta Pute			

As you can see the image's edges are mirrored by the amount defined in the photo pack frame setting. This frame size can be configured in the Photo Pack Editor.

To change and design for different effects click on the Parameters tab. Here you can edit any of the related parameters and see the effects immediately. It is also possible to create many different variations of the gallery wrap including triptych, diamond formation and other effects here.

frame type mirror image sample stretch picker none multiplex multiplex i area 300.00 rows 1 area 300.00 i 300.00 rows 1 i area 1 gap 0.00 ↓ drop 0.00 ↓ alignment Top ♥	anvas			
● mirror         ● image         ● sample         ● stretch         ● picker         ● picker         ● none         multiplex         width       height         □ area       300.00         rows       1         1       ▼         gap       0.00         drop       0.00         alignment       Top	frame typ	e		
○ image         ○ sample         ○ stretch         ○ picker         ○ none         multiplex         width       height         □ area       300.00         rows       1         1       ♀         gap       0.00         drop       0.00         alignment       Top	mirror			
<ul> <li>Sample</li> <li>stretch</li> <li>picker</li> <li>none</li> </ul> multiplex multiplex area 300.00 300.00 rows 1 300.00 rows 1 \$\sigma\$ columns 1 \$\sigma\$ drop 0.00 \$\sigma\$ drop 0.00 \$\sigma\$ alignment Top \$\vee\$ Apply	🔘 image	1		
<ul> <li>stretch</li> <li>picker</li> <li>none</li> </ul> multiplex           width         height           area         300.00           rows         1           gap         0.00           drop         0.00           alignment         Top	sampl	e		
picker     independent      independent     indepnet      indepnet      independent     independent	Stretc	h		
onone     multiplex     width   area   300.00   300.00     rows   1   alignment     Top     Apply	picker			
multiplex width height area 300.00 300.00 rows 1 ↓ ↓ columns 1 ↓ ↓ gap 0.00 ↓ ↓ drop 0.00 ↓ ↓ alignment Top ♥	none			
width         height           □ area         300.00         300.00           rows         1         -           columns         1         -           gap         0.00         -           drop         0.00         -           alignment         Top         >	multiplex			
□ area       300.00       300.00         rows       1       ↓         columns       1       ↓         gap       0.00       ↓         drop       0.00       ↓         alignment       Top       ▼		width	height	t
rows 1 columns 1 gap 0.00 drop 0.00 alignment Top Apply	📃 area	300.00	300.0	00
columns 1 gap 0.00 drop 0.00 alignment Top Apply	rows	1	*	
gap 0.00 drop 0.00 alignment Top Apply	columns	1		
drop 0.00 🚖 alignment Top 💌 Apply	gap	0.00	* *	
alignment Top 💌	drop	0.00	* *	
Apply	alignment	Тор		-
Apply				
		A	pply	

### Frame Type

The Frame Type options changes the way that the canvas frame area is filled. The default *Mirror* option mirrors the boundary area of the canvas face to the same width of the frame.

Using the *Picker* option allows the user to assign any colour from the system colour picker or manually enter the RGB or HSB values required. The frame is then drawn with a solid colour based on the selected colour.

In the *Sample* mode the software will automatically calculate the average colour of the placed image and then assign this as the frame colour.

To get a similar effects to manual stretching of the canvas use the *Stretch* option. The software will stretch a small part of the boundary area to cover the width of the frame to simulate this effect.

51

To use the actual image to cover the frame areas use the *Image* option. The image is then sized to cover the canvas face as well as the frame.

To leave the frame are blank use the *None* option that then simply sizes the placed image to the canvas face only and leaves the frame area empty.

#### Multiplex

Users can create triptych type canvas works by using any number of canvas photo packs required to cover the placed image.

For a simple three column triptych with a gap between the canvases simply change the columns value to three and enter the required gap. Click on the Apply button to see the effects.



Each of these columns will be processed as a separate canvas job with the frame type selected. The gap value is taken into account when generating the final output to allow for this cut out.

An example of such design is shown below:



To create even more interesting designs you can use the Drop option to create diamond shape canvas designs.



In the above example the drop value of 80mm with a central alignment results in the design shown. Of course any number of columns can be used to create even more variations. Please note that users can also utilize all of the Image Edit options available such as Zoom & Pan to edit the placed image on the canvas.

An example of an actual design is shown below:



To cover a rectangular area with canvases, either enter the area size needed or alternatively the number of rows and columns and the gap required.

53

54



An example of an actual work is shown below:



Any number of canvases can be deselected for output and can be used for creating special effects and designs as illustrated below.



## Frame and text

Text can be easily added to photo packs by adding text boxes in the Photo Pack Editor. Texts can either be freeform or variable ones utilizing file information or Exif data embedded in the placed images.

My Favourite Picture Using [1,010f,Ifd.Make]

The above photo pack is shown before an image is placed. As can be seen the Exif entry enclosed in the square brackets is referring to the camera make that is replaced with the actual data once an image is placed.



The [1,010f,Ifd.Make] is replaced with the actual data that it refers to which in this example is 'FUJIFILM'. Please note that if the referenced Exif data is not found in the placed image then blank text is inserted.

## Wall Art

To select this mode of operation click on the Wall Art button on the Mode tool bar as shown below:



The first step is to set the wall area that we want to work with. In this example we set this to 1260x840mm.



Next click on the Browser tab and then select the particular folder with the images required.



Once the folder has been selected then the application will scan it for all supported image files in it and add their thumbnails to the view list as shown above.

57

### Image

Now we can drag & drop any of the image thumbnails on the wall area to fill it.



Once the image has been selected then it will be automatically scaled and filled to the current wall area. The **Image** layer will also be selected so that the user can edit the image and its placement with respect to the wall area.



Use the editing functions available here to manipulate and adjust the images relative to the wall area. There is also a fully featured colour editing application that allows detailed retouching. The editing options are divided to distinct groups as explained below. These functions can be applied in any order required.

Mode

## Placement

There are two options available here that control the way that image is placed and scaled in relation to the wall area.

Normally placed images have dimensions that cannot fit exactly to the designated wall area. For instance if the wall area is set to 2000mm x 1000mm and the placed image is 800mm x 600mm then as their aspect ratios are not the same image will not fit exactly. The default behaviour is for the image to be automatically cropped and scaled to **Fill** the wall area. Alternatively you can opt for the **Fit** option that does not crop any part of the image but simply scales the image for the best fit to the wall size.



Examples of these are graphically demonstrated below:



**Fill Placement** 



Fit Placement

Note: In either mode the system automatically rotates the image for best fit if needed.

#### Rotate

This option causes the image to rotate clockwise or anti-clockwise relative to the wall. By clicking repetitively on the button the image will be rotated through successive 90 degrees angle.



#### **Mirror**

Images can be reflected horizontally (mirror) or vertically (flip) by clicking on the corresponding icon. Clicking again will revert the image back to the original state.



## Examples below demonstrate these functions:



Original

Mirror



Flip

## Adjust

To finely tune the image for better placement within the wall area use the 'zoom & pan' option available here.



The pan option allows the user to move the image with respect to the wall area in X or/and Y directions.

By using the Zoom option it is possible to scale up or down the image size with respect to the wall. Place the zoom cursor anywhere on the image and click. Left mouse click zooms up (bigger) and right mouse click zooms down (smaller) the image. The incremental zooms are in 1% step. The maximum zoom allowed is 150% and the minimum is 20%.

Once an image has been zoomed up or down then it will also be possible to shift it in any direction by using the Pan option.



To incrementally increase or decrease the zoom, continue clicking on the image. Once you are happy with the size of the image use the Pan option to move the image around the photo cell for best positioning.



### **Templates**

Once we are happy with the image placement then we can move on to the next stage where we place the canvas templates on the wall area. Click on the Templates tab as shown below to select the required templates.



Locate the template category to list all the canvas templates contained within it. You can now simply drag & drop the required template anywhere on the image area. Place as many templates as required.

You will notice that as soon as a template is dropped on the image the Templates layer under the Edit Mode tab is automatically selected. Here you will find all the tools that allow you to position and arrange the canvas templates exactly as required.



Simply click on the canvas templates located on the right hand column in the **Templates** tab and drag them anywhere on the image area. This process can be repeated for as many canvas templates as required.



The user can either manually position the canvases on the layout or click on one of many pre-defined arrangements available. There are three groups of arrangements, selected, horizontal and vertical.

In the example below we have selected the horizontal arrangement that places the biggest templates in the middle and the smaller ones on the edges. Select all the templates required and click on the option highlighted below:



As can be seen from the above image the templates have been automatically arranged and aligned as well as auto spaced.

To make the design above more interesting we can shift the middle two templates in the opposite directions to give a 'cascade' effect. The templates must be first selected and then by using the arrow keys on the keyboard moved in the vertical direction to give the effect shown below:



The Wall Art feature includes a number of tools that aid the operator to better visualize their design. These are located at the bottom of the **Templates** layer window.



65

In the above example we have opted for the **Proof** option that shows a simulation of the canvases on a 'raised' background. All other parts of the images not on the canvas area including the gaps are removed.

Click on the same icon again to go back to the normal viewing mode.

To actually simulate the design as would be mounted on a wall in a room click on the **Visulaize** option as shown below:



The canvas arrangement is now placed on a colour background representing a wall colour. Alternatively the background image can be changed to an actual room layout by selecting from the list of available rooms in the library.



The canvas layout will now be placed on the room background and can be move to any position required.

To get a better view of the room click on the **Full Screen** button. The screen will now be in full view mode. Press the Esc key to go back to the main screen.



A hard copy of the layout design can also be printed on any desktop printer on your network by clicking on the **Print** button.

To examine the individual canvases in full 3D mode click on the associated button as illustrated below:



All the canvases will now be processed for the 3D visualization and can be selected for viewing from the drop-down menu located at the top of the window.



Using the mouse or the sliders the canvas frames can be manipulated on all axes and zoomed in and out for closer examination. The 3D images show an exact preview of how the final canvas wraps will look like including the frame effects set for the templates (mirror in the above example).

#### **Tiles**

It is also possible to print the wall image as wallpaper tiles if required. Objects such as doors and windows can be superimposed to simulate accurate layout. Select the **Tiles** layer by clicking on the right arrow on the layer control panel. To make the tiles layer contents visible click on the 'eye' icon located on the left hand side of the layer panel. It should be now possible to see the tiles as indicated by dashed red lines.



The tiles width as well as their overlaps and offset values can be set here. The offset value shifts the tiles by the entered amount to the right. The overlap value adds the specified amount to each side of the overlapping tiles that can help with the mounting and alignment of the tiles on the wall.

To help with the accurate placements of tiles, objects such as doors and windows can be added in the **Object** layer.



These objects are only used as a visual guide and do not affect the tiles output.

## Output

Once the design work has been completed then the job can be submitted to the queue for printing. As there are two distinct set of items that can be printed, i.e. canvas gallery wraps and wallpaper tiles, the system will prompt for the selection of the items that are required for output. This allows the operator to select different media profiles as well as print options for the output.



By selecting the **Jigsaw** option only the canvas jobs will be submitted to the queue.



Mode

Once these have been submitted then the user can change the media profile and the print options before submitting the **Wallpaper** jobs.



The image above shows the tiles that would be submitted to the queue. The tiles would be numbered from left to right in ascending order.

The image below shows all the jobs that have been submitted to the queue for printing. As can be seen each canvas and tile is listed and can be examined and edited if required.
	Printer																	
-																		
			* •															
		6																
	sticks (h) h																	
TC	int jobs (3/17)	(006, 17 mages)																
fe	rence		Status	Buffered	Profile		Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File Type	File Size	Submitt	ed Us	sername	Priority		
U	20120615_10	03504_3_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 579.940 x 679.8	90 1	1	0.394 si	am TIFF	66.6 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:08 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03509_4_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 579.940 × 679.8	0 1	1	0.394 si	am TIFF	66.6 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:15 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03513_5_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 579.940 x 679.8	0 1	1	0.394 st	am TIFF	66.6 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:17 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	] 20120615_10	03518_6_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 579.940 x 679.8	0 1	1	0.394 si	am TIFF	66.6 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:23 Ra	nim	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03522_7_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 579.940 x 679.8	0 1	1	0.394 si	am TIFF	66.6 MB	2012-06	-15 10:35:30 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03526_8_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 528.000 x 451.6	10 1	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:32 Ra	min	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03529_9_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 1-	440 528.000 × 451.6	0 1	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:34 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03532_10_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 528.000 x 451.6	10 1	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:40 Ra	nim	Low		
ļ	] 20120615_10	03536_11_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 1-	440 528.000 × 451.6	0 1	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:42 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03539_12_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 528.000 × 451.6	1 07	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:44 Ra	nim	Low		
ļ	_ 20120615_10	03543_13_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 1	440 528.000 x 451.6	0 1	1	0.238 si	am TIFF	39.9 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:51 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03546_14_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 477.200 x 477.2	0 1	1	0.228 5	am TIFF	38.1 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:53 Ra	amin	Low		
ł	20120615_10	03549_15_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 477.200 x 477.2	00 1	1	0.228 5	am TIFF	38.1 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:35:59 Ra	amin	Low		
ļ	20120615_10	03553_16_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 477.200 × 477.2	0 1	1	0.228 si	am TIFF	38.1 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:36:01 Ra	amin	Low		
L	20120615_10	03556_17_17.tif	Ready		Epson Te	extured Fine Art Paper 14	440 477.200 x 477.2	0 1	1	0.228 si	am TIFF	38.1 MB	2012-06-	-15 10:36:02 Ra	amin	Low		
Lun	Palm-on-th	ie-beach.jpg_til ie-beach.jpg_til	le#2_6 Hold (Me le#3_6 Hold (Me	edia) edia)		Epson Enhanced M Epson Enhanced M	atte Paper 720 770. atte Paper 720 770.	000 x 2520.00	0 1	1	1.940 sqn 1.940 sqn	n JPEG n JPEG	257 KB 257 KB	2012-06-151	10:57:50 Ramin 10:57:53 Ramin			
4	] Palm-on-th	e-beach.jpg_til	ie#4_6 Hold (Me	edia)		Epson Enhanced Ma	atte Paper 720 770.	X00 x 2520.00	01	1	1.940 sqn	n JPEG	257 KB	2012-06-151	10:57:55 Ramin			
÷	Palm-on-th	e-beach.jpg_ti	ie#5_0 Hold (Mi	edia)		Epson Enhanced Mi	atte Paper 720 770.	00 x 2520.00	0 1	1	1.940 sqn	n JPEG	207 KB	2012-06-151	10:57:57 Ramin			
1	] Palm-on-th	e-beach.jpg_til	ie#0_b e Hold (Ma	edia)		Epson Enhanced Ma	atte Paper 720 270.	00 x 2520.00	0 1	1	0.680 sqn	n JPEG	257 KB	2012-06-151	10:57:59 Kamin			
۰.	10-57-57 July Da	de on the head	ing the #4 5 percent	found														
k	10:57:57] Warni 10:57:57] Palm-c	ng: job Palm-on- on-the-beach.jpg	the beach.jpg_tle#4 the #4_6 moved from	6 is not printable Active folder to I	(due to media n Hold folder due	nismatch) to media mismatch												
6 1 6 1 6 1		op submitted: Pa sim-on-the-beart	en-on-the-beach.jpg_l h processing	tie#5_6														a star
6 6 6 6 6	10:57:58] New jo 10:57:58] Joh Pa	ALL MARK AND AND A	ing the straight france into	found														
6 6 6 6 6 6	10:57:58] New j: 10:57:58] Job Pa 10:57:59] Job Pa	im-on-the-beach	- Jpg_ue=3_0 new jou		(due to media o	nismatch)												
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	10:57:58] New Ji 10:57:58] Job Pa 10:57:59] Job Pa 10:57:59] Warni	im on the beach ng: job Palm on-	the beach.jpg_tie#5_	6 is not printable	tald Falden due	to marine mineral de												
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	10:57:58] New ji 10:57:58] Job Pa 10:57:59] Job Pa 10:57:59] Warni 10:57:59] Palm-c 10:58:00] New ii	im-on-the-beach ng: job Palm-on- on-the-beach.jpg ob submitted: Pa	the beach, jog_tie #5 g_tile #5_6 moved from im-on-the-beach.log	6 is not printable Active folder to I tile #6_6	Hold folder due	to media mismatch												
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	10:57:58] New ji 10:57:58] Job Pa 10:57:59] Job Pa 10:57:59] Warni 10:57:59] Palm-o 10:58:00] New ji 10:58:01] Job Pa	im on the beach ng: job Palm on on the beach jog ob submitted: Pa im on the beach	the beach, jog_tile#5 j_tile#5_6 moved from im-on-the-beach.jpg_i jpg_tile#6_6 new job	6 is not printable Active folder to I tile #6_6 found	Hold folder due	to media mismatch												

The wallpaper jobs are being held by the server as they do not match the media currently loaded. Once the media has been changed to the relevant wallpaper media then these jobs will be released automatically to the active queue for printing.

By combining the canvas and wallpaper elements it is possible to create truly unique wall art with a '3D' effect.

## **Advanced editing**

To demonstrate the powerful range of tools that are available to users for design and production of wall arts we will now go through an actual example from start to finish.

The first step is to define the wall size that we would want to work with, 1200 x 800mm in this example, as shown below:

73



Next we will drop the image that we want to work with on the wall area.



Now we can start designing the canvas wall art by arranging the canvas templates on the image.



We roughly position the template where it should be. Next we rotate the template by clicking on the Rotate icon. Use the Redo and Undo buttons to correct any editing mistakes.



Now we drag a second smaller template on the image area and position it close to the other template.

76



Next we would want the templates to be aligned centrally in the horizontal direction to each other and can achieve this by selecting both templates and then click on the Horizontal Centre Align icon as shown above.



To assign an exact gap distance between the templates enter the required value in the designated box as shown above.



Now we will shift the templates while selected to the desired area by using the arrow keys on the keyboard.

We want to compliment the same arrangement on the bottom side but in mirrored arrangement. So we will first copy the existing templates arrangement and then shift it to the edge of the bottom border.



Next will now mirror the duplicated canvases by clicking on the Mirror button as shown below.



We will now flip the selection by again clicking on the Flip button and then move the selection to the left.

Finally to centre the whole design on the wall area we will first select all templates by pressing (Ctrl + A) or dragging a lasso around them and then clicking on the Centre button.





To visually examine the design click on the **Proof** button.

And to visualize it in a room, mounted on the wall, click on the **Visualize** option.



Mode





Finally submit the jobs to the queue for printing fully nested on the media.



The canvas jobs will then be printed exactly as shown in the nest layout including the trim marks and job labels that help the operator to finish them easily and quickly.

# **Image Edit**

Use the editing functions available here to manipulate and adjust the images relative to their corresponding photo cells. There is also a fully featured colour editing application that allows detailed retouching. The editing options are divided to distinct groups as can be seen below. These functions can be applied in any order required.

placement	
rotate	5 C
mirror	
adjust	<b>*</b> Q
edit	

### Placement

There are two options available here that control the way that images are placed and scaled in relation to the photo cells.

Usually your photos have dimensions that cannot exactly fit to the desired photo cell size. For instance if a template defines  $10 \times 15$  photos to be printed, but your source photo is  $8 \times 6$  size, they will not fit correctly. Here you may choose to automatically crop your pictures (Fill) or size them proportionally (Fit).



The default setting is **Fill** that 'auto-crops'. This mode will not scale your photos in such a way that would distort them from their original aspect ratio. Instead, it determines how best for the photos to fit in each photo cell of the template. You can always adjust the auto cropping by using 'zoom & pan' described later in this section. This allows you to fine tune what portion of the photo will actually print.

The **Fit** mode will size the photo to proportionally fit into the photo element of the template. This sizing does not distort the photo. Because of the way that the fitting is applied there will be unused space (white space) in the width or height of the photo element. No part of the original image is cropped out or lost in this mode.

Examples of these are graphically demonstrated below:





**Fill Placement** 

**Fit Placement** 

**Note:** In either mode the system automatically rotates the image for best fit if needed.

### Rotate

Causes the images to rotate clockwise or anti-clockwise relative to the photo cell. By clicking repetitively on the button the image will be rotated through successive 90 degrees angle.



### Mirror

Images can be reflected horizontally (mirror) or vertically (flip) by clicking on the corresponding icon. Clicking again would revert the image back to the original state.



Examples below demonstrate these functions:



Original

Mirror

Flip

# Adjust

To fine-tune images for better placement within the photo cells use the' zoom & pan' option available here.



The **pan** option allows the user to move the image with respect to the photo cell in X or/and Y direction. No movement is allowed if the *placement* option is set to **Fit**. If the *placement* is set to **Fill** then the only movement allowed is in the direction where the image cropping has occurred.

By using the **Zoom** option it is possible to scale up or down the image size with respect to the photo cell. Place the cursor anywhere on the image and click. Left mouse click zooms up (bigger) and right mouse click zooms down (smaller) the image. The incremental zooms are in 1% step. The maximum zoom allowed is 150% and the minimum is 20%.

Once an image has been zoomed up or down then it will also be possible to shift it in any direction by using the **Pan** option.



To incrementally increase or decrease the zoom, continue clicking on the image. Once you are happy with the size of the image use the **Pan** option to move the image around the photo cell for best positioning.



The same editing can as easily be applied to multiple elements by first selecting them and then applying the 'zoom &pan' functions.



Selected images will be highlighted in red and any editing on one would be also applied to all the others.

## Edit

Selected images on the photo pack can be retouched and colour edited in either interactive or in a batch conversion mode.



Select any of the images by clicking on its photo cell. The selected items are highlighted in red. Next click on the pen icon to start the interactive colour editing application.



The user is able to utilize the comprehensive list of colour editing features available here to visually alter and enhance images. There is a before & after preview of the image being edited. Any changes are shown instantly and all previews are colour managed to show the colour changes very accurately.



All steps can be undone and reset if required. All editing steps can be saved as a preset that can then be applied to any selection of images in a batch mode.



Upon exit from the Image Edit application the system saves a copy of the original image with all the changes applied. The filename of the original image is amended by adding an incremental number to it.



To apply the pre-sets that was saved in the Image Edit application in a batch mode to a number of selected images click on the gear icon to launch the batch application.

87

Batch Convertor	8 x
C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\Angler in sunset.jpg C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\Beach.JPG C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\Beer.tif C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\Books.tif C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\Broken glass.tif C:\Shiraz\Focus\sample\candles.jpg	
J Filter sepia 💌	0%
Files Convert Remove	Close

The selected filter is then applied to all the selected images and copies of them are created.

# **Media Profile**

Every media that is supported by the Shiraz Focus system has its own unique colour profile table, for the particular printer model, listed here. This is further expanded by the number of print modes that the printer supports.

For example for an **Enhanced Matte Paper** on the **Epson Stylus Pro 9900** printer that has three print modes **720**, **1440** and **2880**, there would be three profile tables as listed below:

- Epson Enhanced Matte Paper 720
- Epson Enhanced Matte Paper 1440
- Epson Enhanced Matte Paper 2880

The naming convention for the profile tables here are designed to fully describe the media and the print mode being used. By selecting the right tables here you will be assured that not only images printed are colour accurate but also that they are printed at the required speed and quality.



Media tables contain within them not only the various ICC colour profiles for colour transformations and gamut mapping but also the ink limiting, linearization and printer controls such as number of passes, carriage speed, print direction and others for optimum print production.

Shiraz Focus colour engine supports all major colour spaces such as RGB, CMYK, Lab, and Grey. The user is free to use images with different colour spaces within the same photo pack as the system will automatically detect and apply the appropriate colour conversions needed. The various **ICC Input Profiles** and **Rendering Intents** can be configured to suit your production requirement. It is also possible to configure the system to apply the embedded ICC profiles or not. (Please refer to the **Preference** section for more details).

The full name of the currently selected media is displayed in the info bar at the bottom of the window. Additionally if the selected media matches the loaded media on the printer a green tick is also shown. If there is a mismatch between the selected media profile and the loaded media then a yellow warning triangle is shown. If there is no tick or triangle then the media matching is not active.

**Note:** Additional media profiles can be loaded into the system by using the **Liveupdate** program located under the **Tools** menu.

Additional information and instructions will be shown in the tool tip when placing the cursor on the profile media selection area. This information is important when loading media on the printer and must be used for optimum production.

Media Profile	
Canon Satin Photo Quality Paper Draft	
🞸 Canon Satin Photo Quality Paper High 👘 👘	
Canon Satin Photo Quality Paper Normal	
Innova Decor High White Matte Canvas 280g Draft	
Innova Decor High White Matte Canvas 280g High	
Innova Decor High White Matte Canvas 280g Norm	
Innova Decor Poster Art Draft	
🗸 Innova Decor Poster Art High	
Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	
Innova FibaPrint High White Matte 280g Draft	
🐓 Innova FibaPrint High White Matte 280g High	
🐓 Innova FibaPrint High White Matte 280g Normal 🗦	
Innova FibaPrint Semi-Glazed 285g Draft	
🐓 Innova FibaPrint Semi-Glazed 285g High	
Innova FibaPrint Semi-Glazed 285g Normal	
Innova FibaPrint Ultra Smooth Gloss 285g Draft	
🞸 Innova FibaPrint Ultra Smqoth Gloss 285g High	
🐓 Innova FibaPrint Ultra Smowth Gloss 285g Normal	
Innova FibaPrint Warmton Media: Innova FibaPrint Ultra S	mooth Gloss 285g. IFA-49. On printer set media to Special 2, from the Special category. Profile only for build 11085 or later.
🐓 Innova FibaPrint Warmtone Gloss 300g High	
🗸 Innova FibaPrint Warmtone Gloss 300g Normal	
🐓 Innova FibaPrint White Gloss 300g Draft	
A DE DE LEVELE DE DODÉLET.	

#### **Print Mode**

To view and edit the print mode of the selected media profile, simply double-click on its name. The associated print mode table will now be displayed.

	Parameter	Value
2	Resolution	720 x 1440
	Print Direction	Bi-Directional
	Feed Offset	0
	Auto Cut	Off
3	Print Quality	Microweave High Quality
	Paper Source	Roll
	Min Drying Time	0s
	Min Scan Time	000ms
	Platen Gap	Default
	Vacuum Intensity	51
	Roll Tension Mode	Default
	Borderless Margin	3.0mm(l/r), 1.0mm(t/b)
	Borderless Cutting	Default - None

Various print parameters are listed here and can be changed by the user to alter the printing characteristics. For example to force the printer to print in uni-direction we set the **Print Direction** parameter to **Uni-Directional** as shown below.

	Parameter	Value
Ö	Resolution	720 x 1440
	Print Direction	Uni-Directional 🗸
	Feed Offset	0
	Auto Cut	Off
Ö	Print Quality	Microweave High Quality

As can be seen certain parameters are locked and cannot be altered. This is because changing any of these will cause printing issues or will affect the colour accuracy of the print.

One of the most important parameter that the user needs to be aware of is the selection of the 'Paper Source'.

Print Quality	Microweave High Quality
Paper Source	Roll 🔻
Min Drying Time	Roll
Min Scan Time	Sheet
Platen Gap	Default

This setting instructs the printer which media source to use for the print job. Sending the wrong parameter here can stop the print from happening.

Please note that any changes made here are only valid while the profile table remains selected. To change these parameters permanently edit the profile tables in the Colour module.

# **Print** Options

In this final step of design process and before you submit the job to be printed, the user can select from various printing options listed here. The system will then submit the job to the print queue with these additional instructions.

**Note:** Selecting any of these options here does not have any effect on the images shown. They are only used at the print stage by the system.

quantity	1
crop marks	
boundary marks	
job label	
cut	X
nest	

To use any of these option simply click on its icon to switch it on. These options will persist until they are switched off even after the Focus application is restarted.

#### quantity

Total number of repeats required for the current job can be set here. The valid range is 1-100. If the current media source is set to **Roll** and **Nesting** is not selected then images will be step & repeated automatically along the roll width and length.

If the media source is set to **Sheet** and **Nesting** is not selected then each image is printed individually on individual sheets.

In either cases of media source if **Nesting** is selected then the system would automatically nest the images for the best use of the media. Furthermore in **Sheet** case the system prints as many sheets as required to cover all images.

#### crop marks

Crop marks will be placed automatically at the corners of the photo packs if this option is selected. These marks can be used for easy trimming of the images specially if there is white space around the image.



The markers add additional spaces to the width and height of the printed image. Please note that these marks are added to the photo pack boundary and not the photo cells within the pack. To configure the size and type of crop marks used open the **Preferences** window and configure the respective parameters.

### **boundary marks**

This option when used adds a rectangular boundary line to the perimeter of the photo pack. The thickness, line type and its corner type can be configured in the system **Preferences**.

### job label

Information regarding the job size, date/time etc. can be printed along the outer edges of the photo packs by selecting this option.



The label adds additional spaces to the width and height of the printed image. The user can also add a diagonal watermark on the image if required. All these parameters can be configured in the system **Preferences**.

#### cut

To instruct the printer to cut off the printed images at the end of the print operation select this option. The cut option can be configured to execute a cut command at the end of a print job or after each row for jobs that contain multiple rows of images. This option can be set in the system **Preferences**.

#### nest

Jobs sent to the print queue will be nested for the best use of the currently loaded media by selecting this option. The nest attribute of the job is switched on by this option. Only jobs with the same **Media Profile** and their nest attributes on are nested together.

Nesting behaviour can be configured by the settings available in the **Setup** area of the **Printer** section. (Refer to **Nesting Parameters** later in this manual).

93

### submit

To send jobs to the print queue where they will be processed and printed, click on the big print button as shown below.



The system will now process all individual images and text within the photo pack for the ultimate output quality. This includes colour managing and image processing routines that will result in a ready to print image.

**Note:** Any options selected here apart from the **quantity** setting will be persisted by the system as the default setting for the next session.

In the next chapter we will cover the actual printing and job management part of the Shiraz Focus system.

# Printer

Jobs that have been submitted for printing from the **Design** module will be managed and processed in this section. There are many features available here that enables the user to control the incoming jobs and parameters that can be configured to customize the production aspects of the Shiraz Focus system. These include changing job priority, editing job parameters, holding and removing jobs etc. It is also possible to manually edit the nest layouts if needed.

Jobs that have been printed are automatically archived in the system and can be submitted back for printing again. A comprehensive report of the activities and messages from the system are logged and can be examined at any time by the user.

The system employs live polling of information from the printer that is used to check and manage incoming jobs for various conditions such as media type and size as well as printer's status such as ink level and calibration state. Based on these information the system will automatically halt printing process, warn the user of impending problems or hold jobs that do not match the currently loaded media (media matching).

The print queue can be configured to start up automatically on system boot up or can be started manually by the user when required. It is also possible to program the queue to start and stop at certain times by scheduling it.

rrent jobs	(0 jobs, 0 images)														
ference	Status	Buffered	Profile	Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File Type	File Size	Submitted	Username	Priority			+
															+
															_
															19
															0
															•
															-
jobs (0)	obs, 0 images)														
erence	Status	Buffered	Profile	Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File Type	File Size	Submitted	User name				۵
															-
															×.
															19
log	Using HASP hardware pro	otection key ts left: 104													
log 15:05:43 15:05:43	Deather Diverse Manufact	e.													
log 15:05:43 15:05:43 15:05:43 15:05:43	Raster/Photo Version CMPI Engine set to Adobr	JPT0330													
log 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43	Raster/Photo Version CMM Engine set to Adob Queue name -> CANON														
log 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43 3 15:05:43	Raster/Photo Version CMM Engine set to Adob Queue name -> CANON														
log 15:05:43 15:05:43 15:05:43 15:05:43 15:05:43	Raster/Photo Version CMM Engine set to Adob Queue name -> CANON														

We will now examine the various components of this module in more detail.

There are four tabs available in this window as detailed below.

# Active

96

This is the main tab where the job processing and management is carried out by the system. The area is divided into two parts.

## **Current Jobs**

Jobs listed here will be processed and printed in the order shown. These jobs could be either *single* or *nested* depending on how they were submitted from the **Design** module. Jobs in the queue can be operated on by either right-clicking on them and selecting the function required from the drop menu or selecting and then using the controls available in the **Current Job control**.

## **Held Jobs**

Jobs can be put on hold or released by the user by simply drag & dropping it on the **Hold Jobs** area or vice versa. Also the system will automatically put on hold jobs that do not fit on the currently loaded media or if the wrong media type is loaded. Once the right conditions are met then they will be automatically released from the hold area to the current one. Jobs that have not been successfully processed and had error for various reasons would also be listed here.

urrent jobs (1/3 jobs, 1	L4 images)				<b>a</b> : 1	<b>0</b> 11				<b>E</b> 11 <b>C</b> 1	
(eference	Status	Butte	ered Pro	ofile	Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File lype	File Size	Su
20120320_19271	5.tif Ready		Inn	ova Decor Poster Art Normal	433.490 x 289.000	4	1	0.501 sqm	JPEG	2.57 MB	201
20120320_19273	20.26.225 Ready		Inn	ova Decor Poster Art Normal	518.300 x 211.070	4	1	0.2/0 sqm	Nort	2.00 MB	201
	Job	Job	ple D								
	Job	Jok		11					Held Jo	obs	
dd ieler /1/1 iele 1 iere	Job	Job		tii.					Held Jo Contr	obs	,
e <b>ld jobs</b> (1/1 job, 1 ima	ge) Status	Buffered	Profile	III Dimensia	ons Quantity Cop	ies Area	File Type	File Si	Held Jo Contr	obs ol	) User
< [line] leld jobs (1/1 job, 1 imag Reference	ge) Status	Buffered	Profile	III Dimensic	ons Quantity Cop	es Area	File Type	File Si	Held Jo Contr	obs ol	) User

Each job found here has important information about them listed in the various columns of the table. Some of these details are static and do not change and others might change when their parameters are adjusted. These are now explained in more details.

*Reference* – this is the job reference that is assigned to the job by the system when it is submitted from the **Design** module. The name assigned is based on a time stamp in the **YYYYMMDD\_HHMMSS** format.

*Status* – the current job condition is highlighted here. There are a number of states that jobs can posses:

Ready - The green indicator signals that the job is all set and waiting to be printed.

Hold - This state indicates that the job has been put on hold by the user.

Hold (Media) - The job has been put on hold by the system for not matching the current media loaded on the printer. The job will be automatically released once the matching media is loaded.

Hold (Size) - Jobs that are bigger than the currently loaded media are automatically put on hold by the system. The job will be released once the correct media size is loaded.

• **Waiting** - Nest jobs that have not reached the minimum conditions set in the **Nesting Parameter** will show this state. Once they reach the minimum requirements then the status is set to the Ready state.

• Error - Jobs that have failed to process or print correctly have their status set to this condition. These jobs can be submitted back to the **Current Jobs** queue by the user for reprocessing if required.

Done - Jobs that have been successfully processed and printed are archived by the system and have their status set to this. These jobs can be submitted back to the **Current Jobs** queue by the user for reprinting if required.

*Buffered* – An icon in this column indicates that the print data for the job already exists and printing will commence without any additional job processing.

*Profile* – The Media Profile that was selected when the job was submitted is shown in this column.

*Dimensions* – The width and height of jobs in the current system units are displayed here. Additionally for nest jobs the area coverage in percentage is also indicated here.

*Quantity* – This parameter is used to repeat the job by its value for best fit (step & repeat) across the width of the media.

*Copies* – The number of times that the system will print this same job is indicated here.

Area – The total area coverage of the job in the currently selected unit is shown here.

*File Type* – The file format of the current job is indicated here.

File Size – The value here shows the actual size of the file for the job in the current unit.

*Submitted* – The information shown here is the actual date and time of when the job was first submitted from the Design module or hot folder.

User name – The name of the user who submitted this job is shown here.

The job listing here can be reordered automatically by clicking on various columns heading. If for example you want to order the jobs by their file sizes click on the **File Size** heading. Click gain to order in the opposite sense.

Nest jobs headings are highlighted in bold lettering and the list of the individual jobs within the nest group can be examined by expanding the job tree. To expand the tree click on the arrow or plus sign adjacent to the nest icon. To collapse the job tree click again.

The set of commands that control the entire print queue operation, **Queue Control**, is located at the top left corner of the window.

97



Each of these commands are now explained in more details.

	Start the printer queue. All current jobs as well as incoming ones will be processed and printed.
	Stops the print queue and returns the queue to the idle state. Any job being processed or printed will be aborted and placed in the hold area.
	Click on this button to start the system processing jobs and buffering print data. This enables the system to 'RIP ahead' and commence printing immedietly.
ଓ	Schedules the queue to start and optionally stop at selected times.
Ç	Refreshes the queue status and updates all parameters.
	Clears the system console. All messages will be erased.

The commands for the jobs listed in the queue are located in the **Selected Job Control** menu. These operators affect only the selected job(s) and are context sensitive. They can also be selected by right clicking on the selected job entries and then choosing from the drop down menu. These commands are now explained in the table below.

	Moves the selected job(s) up by one position.
+	Moves the selected job(s) down by one position.
	Moves the selected job(s) to the Archive folder.
-	Removes and deletes the selected job(s) from the queue.
11	Puts the selected job(s) on hold.
	Opens and edit the currently selected job or nest group.

Ð	Processes and prints selected job(s). The queue will be in idle state when finished.
¥	Nests selected jobs together.
	Moves the selected job(s) to the Current jobs folder.
0	Aborts currently running job.

Jobs can be moved in and out of a nest group by drag & drop action. To add jobs to a nest group, first select the jobs by single clicking on them (use Ctrl key to select multiple jobs) and then drag them over the nest group entry.

**Note:** Only jobs with the same media profile can be nested together. Also locked nest groups cannot be added to.

Individual jobs can be moved out of a nest group by simply dragging their entries from the nest job list and dropping them outside the nest job entry.

To edit single jobs or a nest group, double click on their job entry. You could also select them first and then click on the **Edit button**. Depending on weather a single job or a nest group was opened for editing, you would be presented with different windows as explained in more details below.

# **Editing Single Jobs**

The user can edit certain parameters of single jobs in the queue by editing them. Also there is additional information about the job shown here. The job options that can be edited are listed in the **Edit** section and are explained in more details below.

99

	1			Parameter	Value
	S.C.		10 M	Info	
			10	Name	20120321 112445.tif
1				Path	C:/Shiraz/Focus/queue/CANON I
- 60 I				Type	TIFF
				Page	1/1
		1 alter		User	Ramin
		(1) 图机。	4 4 4 4 4	Printing	
	and a	- (X Z II		Media	Innova Soft White Cotton 280g
				Mode	RGB
				Geometry	
1				X Dpi	600
20				Y Dpi	600
				Original Wi	431.715
_	34		1	Original Hei	508,000
			and the second second	Crop Width	508.000
Edit				Crop Height	431./15
	-			X Scale	100%
Profile	Innova Soft Whi	te Cotton 280g Nor	rmal 💌	Y Scale	100%
Rotate	270	•		Output Width	508.000
				Output Hei	431.720
Justify	Left	•			
Mirror	Off	•			
Scale	100.00%	A V			
Quantity	1	<b>A</b>			
Copies	1	•			
Marker					
📃 Nest job					
(ĝ)					

Profile – the name of the output ICC profile that has been applied to the image is shown here. This parameter cannot be changed by the user.

Rotate – rotates the image in 90 degrees angle.

Justify – this option is used to position the image relative to the media. There are three options available here, Left, Center and Right. The default justification is Left.

Mirror – images can be reflected against the horizontal or vertical axis by using this option.

Scale – images can be resized from their original job size here by applying the desired scale factor. The user is warned if the new image size is bigger than the current media size.

Quantity – the value entered here sets the number of repeats for the job. Images are automatically step & repeated for the best use of the media.

Copies – this parameter sets the total number of times that this job gets processed. It is similar in operation to submitting the same job multiple times.

Label – when selected a job label with information about the job will be printed at the top left corner of the job. This option increases the job size by 20mm in both X and Y direction.

Marker – crop marks will be added to the four corners of the job if this option is selected. This option increases the job size by 20mm in both X and Y direction.

Nest Job – jobs can be added or removed from nest groups by using this option here.

Print Mode – Click on the icon is here to examine and edit the print mode settings for the job.

To save any changes made click on **OK** button otherwise click **Cancel** to exit without save.

## **Editing Nest Jobs**

Nest jobs entries in the print queue are highlighted in bold lettering and can have an expanded view that lists all the jobs contained within them. Double click on the nest name to view and edit the nesting layout.



A layout of the nest job relative to the media size is shown here. Nesting parameters that dictate the nesting arrangement and relevant information about the nest are arranged on the right hand side of the window. Also various buttons for layout control and automatic alignment are located at the top bar of the window. Parameters that can be changed by the user are detailed below:

Locked – no new jobs can be added to a nest group that is locked. Nest jobs are locked automatically by the system if any editing has been done on them. The user can also lock nest jobs to prevent them from being

102

changed by the system as nest groups are dynamic and are modified constantly by the system as new jobs arrive.

Center jobs horizontally - select this option in order for the nest group to be horizontally centered on the media.

Center jobs vertically - select this option in order for the nest group to be vertically centered on the media. This option is only valid for sheet media type.

Rotate jobs for best fit – to enable the system to rotate images automatically for better fit and nesting optimization select this option.

Nesting gap – the value entered here sets the horizontal and vertical gap between nest items.

Trim lines – for easier cutting out of the printed images the system can be instructed to arrange the nesting layout so that they can be trimmed easier in either horizontal or vertical direction. If this option is set to **None** then the system will pack the images as closely as possible to each other. This arrangement gives the best media utilization at the cost of more difficult trimming layout.

Select the Horizontal option and click the Nest automatically button.



An example of horizontal trim line arrangement is shown above. If not happy with the arrangement press the button again to see alternative arrangements.

You can examine the Nest summary information when deciding what arrangement to select.

Reference:	Nest-09-12-18-05-10-296
Profile:	HP Premium Instant Dry Gloss Enhanced
Items:	12
Area:	1068.10 mm x 250.65 mm (0.268 sq m)
Coverage:	84.65%
📃 Locked	

Now select the Vertical option and click on the **Nest automatically** button. The system will rearrange the nest arrangement for this setting.



An example of vertical trim line arrangement is shown above.

Shift – the position of a nest group relative to the media can be altered by the values entered here. All the values are relative to the origin that is located in the top left corner.

Nest automatically - With any changes are made to the parameters explained above click on this button to accept and execute the nest routine. The new nesting layout is subsequently shown graphically and the resultant statistics are displayed. To get an alternative nesting arrangement press the button again and observe the new results.

It is also possible for the user to manually edit the nesting layout. Select images by clicking on them and then drag them to the position required. Once selected you could also rotate images by using the options available at the top menu bar. When multiple images are selected then it is also possible to use the various alignment options available here for accurate placement.

Use the Undo & Redo buttons to step back and forth in the stages taken so far.

# Archive

Jobs that have been processed and printed successfully are then archived and listed in this area.

F	leference	Status	Buffered	Profile	Dimensions	Quantity	Copies	Area	File Type	File Size 🔺
	20120319_130801.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	510.710 x 366.440	1	1	0.187 sqm	JPEG	10.9 MB
	20120319_132107.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art High	420.030 x 297.010	1	1	0.125 sqm	JPEG	700 KB
	20120319_133156.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	528.000 x 451.720	1	1	0.239 sqm	TIFF	117.7 MI
	20120319_135842.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	528.000 x 451.720	1	1	0.239 sqm	TIFF	117.7 MI
	20120319_141221.tif	Done		Fujifilm Photo Paper Glossy 240 High	215.960 x 302.960	1	1	0.065 sqm	TIFF	47.4 MB
	20120319_142001.tif	Done		Fujifilm Photo Paper Glossy 240 High	215.960 x 302.960	1	1	0.065 sqm	TIFF	47.4 MB
	20120319_142208.tif	Done		Fujifilm Photo Paper Glossy 240 High	215.960 x 302.960	1	1	0.065 sqm	TIFF	47.4 MB
	20120319_143204.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art High	431.720 x 508.000	1	1	0.219 sqm	TIFF	117.7 MI
	20120319_151754.tif	Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Normal	558.800 x 863.600	1	1	0.483 sqm	TIFF	43.6 MB
	20120319_152731.tif	Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Normal	599.950 x 399.970	1	1	0.240 sqm	TIFF	96.8 MB
	20120320_064244.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	508.000 x 431.720	1	1	0.219 sqm	TIFF	117.7 MI
Ľ	20120320_065809.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	457.200 x 457.200	1	1	0.209 sqm	TIFF	112.3 MI
	20120320_071428.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	457.200 x 457.200	1	1	0.209 sqm	TIFF	112.3 MI
	20120320_072638.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	508.000 x 431.720	1	1	0.219 sqm	TIFF	117.7 MI
	20120320_103004.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	397.950 x 297.940	1	1	0.119 sqm	TIFF	85.2 MB
	20120320_103944.tif	Done		Innova Decor Poster Art Normal	179.960 x 129.980	1	1	0.023 sqm	TIFF	17.6 MB
	20120321_063913.tif	Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Normal	599.950 x 399.970	1	1	0.240 sqm	TIFF	96.8 MB
	Nest-21-03-07-33-29-4	91 🔵 Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Norma	601.490 x 299.970 (99.429	<b>%) 1</b>	1	0.180 sqm	Nest	
	Nest-21-03-07-38-26-3	23 🔘 Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Norma	601.490 x 299.970 (99.429	<b>%) 1</b>	1	0.180 sqm	Nest	
	Nest-21-03-07-42-21-6	50 🔵 Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Norma	601.490 x 299.970 (99.429	<b>%) 1</b>	1	0.180 sqm	Nest	
	Nest-21-03-07-46-12-1	72 🔘 Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Norma	601.490 x 299.970 (99.429	<b>%) 1</b>	1	0.180 sqm	Nest	
	Nest-21-03-07-50-03-9	45 🔵 Done		Innova Soft White Cotton 280g Norma	601.490 x 299.970 (99.429	<b>%) 1</b>	1	0.180 sqm	Nest	-

These archived jobs can be submitted back to the **Active** queue for reprinting if required. They can also be removed from the list permanently.

Archive jobs are hidden as default when the software is first started. To load and display the archived jobs click on the Load Archive icon on the right hand side bar.

The user is also able to open these jobs for examination by clicking on the Edit option or double-clicking on their name. But no editing can be carried out on these jobs until they have been submitted back to the **Active** area.

## Setup

The various settings and parameters that affect the running of the print queue are found in this section. These are divided into three categories.

Image: Second
---

#### General

As the name suggests this is the category that includes all the commonly used settings. This section also contains additional information about the current queue.

Under the **Queue properties** heading you will find general information about the print queue and its associated printer. There is also a **Description** entry that you can use to enter your own free text describing the queue.

Under the **General settings** there are a number of conditions that the user can select or deselect depending on their production requirements.

*Start queue automatically on startup* – Whenever the Shiraz Focus software is started the print queue default state is idle. This means that the system would not start processing and printing the incoming jobs until the user starts up the queue. To override this behaviour and allow the queue to also start on boot up select this option.

*Error jobs with no profile* – If a job is submitted with no associated profile table to the print queue then the system will error this job if this option is selected. Otherwise it is allowed to process and print. It is strongly recommended to leave this option selected.

*Error jobs with missing fonts* – This option checks that all fonts used within the job being printed are available on the system if selected. If a missing font is found then the job is errored.

*Hold jobs not matching queue Media* – As default the system checks all incoming jobs for their media setting and if they do not match the currently loaded media type then they will be put on hold until the media type is changed. This is important to insure correct printing of images. The user can override this behaviour and switch off the media matching mechanism of the system by deselecting this option.

*Auto rotate to save media (Roll only)* – If a non-nesting (single) job that has been submitted from the **Design** module to the print queue would yield a better media usage by rotation then it will be if this option is selected. This option is only applicable to Roll media type and does not affect the nesting behaviour.

*Keep jobs in archive when finished* – Jobs can be automatically archived in the system when printed if this option is selected. If deselected then they will be deleted once they have been printed.

*Log mode* – There are four modes available here that decides the content and level of messages generated by the system console. The **Verbose** mode is a very comprehensive logging mode and is only used for trouble shooting and debugging purposes. The other modes behave as their name sake suggests.

### **Paths**

The system uses various default folders for its operation that can be changed by the user if needed.



Some of these paths are fixed and cannot be changed. To change any of the ones allowed click on the button located next to the current location listing. A standard operating system folder election window will now be displayed that can be used to navigate to the required folder.

Browse For Folder
Select hot folder
📃 Desktop
D Contraction C
▷ 🔣 Homegroup
Ramin
4 🖳 Computer
a 🚰 BOOTCAMP (C:)
🛛 🗋 Intel
PerfLogs
4 🎉 Program Files
D 🍌 Adobe
Apple Software Update
🛛 🖉 🖌 Bonjour 🗸 👻
Make New Folder OK Cancel

The 'Hot folder' location can be changed using the corresponding setting here. This allows the user to change the path to the main hot folder location. All hot folders created will be sub-folders within this folder.

Please note that the location chosen for the hot folder must have read & write access enabled for the current user.

Other paths shown here are related to the locations used by the software for its working. They usually do not need to be changed unless space available on the hard disk where these folders are located is running low.

### Nesting

The Shiraz Focus software employs a very sophisticated nesting algorithm that can be tailor made to suit different production requirements. The nesting layout is calculated based on the current roll or sheet size. Only jobs for the same media type and printing mode are nested together.

The nesting system is dynamic, meaning that the system will automatically update the nesting arrangement as new jobs are submitted or various printer parameters are changed. New nesting jobs are created or removed by the system as required. A nesting job will only be processed by the system if its state is set to **Ready**.

The user can set additional parameters and conditions found here that can dictate and control the nesting behaviour of the system. These are divided into various headings and will be explained in full details now.

	General	Conditions:	Nest single jobs in hot folder			
	Paths		Minimum area		75.00%	*
	Interface		Wait time		Forever	-
	Log		Max jobs per nest		Disabled	×.
		Arrange:	Center jobs horizontally			
			Center jobs vertically			
			📝 Rotate jobs for best fit			
			Nesting gap		1.00	*
			Arrangement	None		•
		Shift:	Тор		0.00	*
			Left		0.00	*
			Right		0.00	*
		Type:	Row-based			
			Maximum length		2000.00	*

#### **Conditions**

Various conditions can be set by the user here to instruct the system when a nest job has reached the minimum requirement for it to be set to **Ready** state. A nest job will not be processed (**Waiting** state) by the system unless it has achieved at least one of the three parameters set here. As soon as any of the conditions set here are reached then the nest job state is set to **Ready** and it will be processed and printed.

Printer

Minimum area – This is the minimum area coverage (media utilization) that the nest group needs to achieve before it is set to the **Ready** state. The default value is set to 75%.

Wait time – The value selected here is the amount of time that the system will wait before a nest job that is still in the **Waiting** state is set to **Ready**. The timer starts from the moment that the nest group was first created. The default setting is set to **Forever**, indicating no waiting time is active and this condition is ignored by the system.

Maximum jobs per nest – The number of jobs per nest can be controlled by the parameter set here. If this number is reached then the nest is set to **Ready**. The default value of **Disabled** in actual fact means that this condition is not used by the system and will be ignored.

#### Arrange

The actual layout of the nesting jobs and the way that they will be arranged in relation to the currently loaded media are affected by the parameters found here.

Centre jobs horizontally – Nesting groups are left justified as default on the media but can be cantered on the media horizontally by selecting this option. This is a useful option if you are laminating or automatically trimming the printed jobs.

Centre jobs vertically – This option is only applicable to **Sheet** media and places the nest group in the centre of the media in the vertical direction.

Rotate jobs for best fit – By selecting this option the system is instructed to rotate images, if needed, on the media to achieve better nesting arrangement. The default option is enabled that gives more flexibility to the nesting algorithm and usually yields a more efficient nesting layout.

Nesting gap – The distance between the nest items in both X and Y directions can be set here. Setting this value to zero will usually give better nesting but might create problems at trimming stage. The default value is set to 10mm.

Cut lines - for faster and more convenient trimming of the printed images the system can be instructed to arrange the nesting layout so that they can be cut easier in either **Horizontal** or **Vertical** direction. If this option is set to **None** (default) then the system will pack the images as closely as possible to each other. This arrangement gives the best media utilization at the cost of trickier trimming layout. Please note that the system might arrange images in multiple layout groups that will require additional trimming.

Examples of the three different cut lines options are illustrated below.


None

Horizontal

Vertical

# Shift

Nesting layouts can be positioned precisely in relation to the media size loaded by setting the parameters available here. Please be aware that by using these shift values you are in actual fact reducing that usable media available and might cause some jobs to be held by the system if their sizes exceed the effective media size.

50mm 30mm	
Martin Basel	Shift
	Left: 50.00 🚔 Right: 100.00 🚔

The image below illustrates the effect of the shift values on the nesting group.

# Туре

The nesting algorithm can be configured to create nest groups based on the width and height parameters (2D) or alternatively just filling rows of images (1D).

Row-based – In this mode the group of nests created are based on the biggest image in the group and then all other images arranged around it for the best use of the media. This mode of operation is best suited for environment where the time factor is more crucial than the nest optimization as nest groups are set ready faster but do not usually yield optimum media utilization.

Default – This mode should be selected for the best use of the media as it optimizes the media usage in both width and length direction. The length can be set to different values to suit your particular requirement. This value sets the maximum nest length that can be created.

**Note:** Any changes made to any of the parameters found in the **Nesting** setup will automatically trigger a recalculation of all nesting jobs and may result in new layouts.

#### Interface

The setup parameters here describes the actual physical connection from the host computer to the printer. The choices here is very much dependent on the printer make and model as well as the operating system being used.

Null – this interface type is not a physical type and is only used for testing purposes. There are no parameters available for this selection.

File – this instructs the system to send the print data to a file in a selected folder location.

TCP/IP – this type of interface uses an Ethernet type connection and requires the IP address of the printer.

*IP Address* - IP address of the printer on the network in 999.999.999 format. Make sure the address has the same domain range as the computer.

*Port Address* - the port address of the Print-Server on the printer where direct binary printing is done. Most Print-Servers use 9100 as their port, however some may be different. Refer to the print server documentation for the correct port number.

*Timeout* - timeout value in seconds which has to expire before an I/O error occurs if the receiving node is not responding or accepting data. For maximum throughput speed set this timeout to 0, effectively disabling timeout checks.

*Buffer Size* - size of TCP/IP internal buffer which is used to store data before outputting packets on the actual I/O channel. The optimum size is dependent on system and will require some trial. The default 48KB will work best on most systems.

Spooler – this interface outputs to a system spooler connected to the printer. Spoolers are usually created by installing the drivers supplied with the printer. Spooler interface port can be set to any type supported by the operating system such as USB, FireWire, TCP/IP, etc.

Parallel (Windows only) – this is an old interface type that is not used any longer on modern printers any more as it is very slow and unreliable. It is only listed here for legacy reason.

HP Direct (HP and Windows only) – this is a direct USB connection for HP printers on Windows platform.

USB (Epson & Mac only) – for direct USB connection on the Mac to an Epson Stylus Pro printer select this option and then click on the find button to list the USB connections found.

Firewire (Epson & Mac only) – for direct firewire connection to the Epson Stylus Pro printer select this option. A list of firewire connections to the printer are then listed for the user to select from.

Canon (Canon only) – this is a special interface type for the Canon range of printers. Regardless of the actual physical connection between the computer and the printer it is recommended to use this option for all Canon printers. The system will automatically scan and find all Canon printers connected to the computer directly (USB, FireWire) or on the network (TCP/IP). Now select the printer from the list shown.

#### Log

Daily logs of printer activities and all the jobs processed and printed are generated by the system that are listed here. These can be examined and printed by the user if required.

#### **Status**

Detailed information about the connected printer and various settings for the media sizes are found in this window. There are also remote printer commands that execute different procedure such as head cleaning and nozzle tests on the printer.

The system constantly monitors and updates the information displayed here. The information is also used by the system for production management and media matching. Any serious problem reported back from the printer is immediately highlighted to the user for urgent actions, these include media and ink out, door open, connection problem etc.

The different printer makes have each their own unique set of information and remote commands available. We will now look at each of these in greater details.

#### Canon

The Canon iPF range of printers will have a similar status screen to the one shown below.

			Media			
Canon PF6350					6,000000	
Online			none		-	
Warning:Ink tank supply low:Yellow Idle			50 505	Ral		
			and the	rue:		
			sheet list	A4Portrait	-	
			width	504.000		
Stah	is Lipdate (Last updated: 17/03/2012 15:11)	(6)	level.			<b>*</b>
Print Status Print	head Adi Nozzle Check	Head Clean	length	10000.000		
			top margin	3.000	· ·	
Name	Value				Ink Levels (%)	
int. Cartridge (free) 8	80%		bottom margin	3.000		
y Name F	Roll Unit 1					
dia Name S	Semi-Glossy Photo Paper HG 255		left margin	3.000		
sdia Width 5	604 mm		right spaces	B 444		
maining Media Length L	Jnknown		ngric margin	3.000		
			double sided control	in RIP	·	
			colour tram bars	0ff • 20		
					20 60 60 20 80 20	60 60 40 20 20 40
J5:43] Using HASP hardware protection key 05:43] Unregistered Copy - Prints left: 104						
05:43] Raster/Photo Version 05:43] CMM Engine set to Adobe						
05:43] Using HASP hardware protection key 05:43] Unregistered Copy - Prints left: 104						

#### Printer state

At the top left corner of the window the printer make and model are displayed. Below that the printer current state is shown. This is a more comprehensive listing of the printer's state than the one highlighted in the Info Bar at the bottom right corner of the screen.

nline	 		
/arning:Ink tank supply low:Yellow			
le			

# **Remote commands**

Here you will find a number of commands for instructing the printer to execute certain procedures. Also the user can force a **Status Update** that refreshes all the information shown in this window. A time stamp indicates the last update.

	Status opublic (cast uput	3100.17/03/2012 13.10.04/	
Print Status	Printhead Adj	Nozzle Check	Head Clean

Print Status – Causes the printer to output a list of important information about the printer's current setup as well as statistics about the media usage so far.

Printhead Adj. – Prints a series of colour patterns and scans these to adjusts for optimum head alignment. This procedure ensures that all colours printed are perfectly registered.

Nozzle Check – The printer output a series of pattern for each colour that the user can examine to check if there are any missing nozzles.

Head Clean – If any nozzles are missing from the nozzle test pattern above then executing this command would force the printer to do a head clean that usually rectifies the problem.

#### Media

Information about type of media and its associated sizing are listed in the table here. Most of the data here are read only and are fed back from the printer.

name	Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper	~
source	Roll	<b>v</b>
sheet list	A4 Portrait	~
width	430.000	
length	30000.000	
top margin	5.000	
bottom margin	5.000	
left margin	5.000	
right margin	5.000	

name – The name of the media that is currently loaded is listed here if a matching media profile is actually found for it on the system. Otherwise this entry will be set to **None** by the system indicating that no media matching will be done by the system. The system constantly monitors the printer status and will update this information if any changes have taken place.

If the profile table for the current media is available on the system then any jobs submitted from the **Design** module will be checked against it and will be held (**Hold (Media)**) by the system if not matched. This behavior is termed **Media Matching**. It is a very important feature of the Shiraz Focus system as it ensures that jobs are printed accurately on the correct media.

Printer

The Media Matching state is graphically highlighted to the user in the **Info Bar** area. There are three possible conditions as shown in the table below.

Media Profile – (Design)	Media Name (Status - Media)	Media Matching State (Info Bar)
Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper Draft	Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper	Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper Normal
Quicksilver Universal Gloss 240g Draft	Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper	🔔 🥥 Quicksilver Universal Gloss 240g Draft
Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper Draft	none	Canon High Glossy Heavy Photo Paper Draft

First Row indicates that media matching is active and the correct media profile is selected. Jobs submitted from Design module will be processed and printed

Second Row indicates that media matching is active but the selected media does not match the current printer media. Any job submitted from Design module will be held by the system.

Third Row indicates that media matching is not active as no corresponding media profile is available on the system for the currently loaded media. Jobs submitted will be processed and printed. User must ensure that the media loaded corresponds with the profile selected.

# **Note:** If the 'auto printer status' option is switched off in the **Preference** settings then the user must manually select the media name from the list.

source – The choices here are either **Roll** or **Sheet** depending on what media source is used on the printer. This information is fed back from the printer.

sheet list – If the **source** is set for sheet then the list of available sheet size can be selected here from the drop down menu. This option must be set by the user.

width – The width of the currently loaded media will be shown here in the current unit. This information is fed back from the printer.

length – The length of the media that is currently loaded on the printer is displayed here in the current unit. This information is usually fed back from the printer but in the case where this data is **unknown** then the default media length for the printer type is used.

margins – The margin settings for all four directions are listed here in the current unit. These information are the values specified by the manufacturer and cannot be altered by the user. Please note that the margin values for roll media could be different to sheet.

# **Printer Info**

Various information about the printer and the media loaded are shown in the table here.

Name	Value
Maint. Cartridge (free)	40%
Tray Name	Roll Unit 1
Media Name	glossy paper
Media Width	430 mm
Remaining Media Length	Unknown

This information is fed back from the printer and is read only. Please note that the information shown above might vary from printer to printer and is different when no media is loaded.

# Ink levels

The amount of inks left in the printer cartridges is graphically illustrated here.



By placing the cursor on any of the ink levels shown here the system would indicate the actual name of the cartridge.

Please be aware that the values shown here are not guaranteed to be 100% accurate and are only intended as an indication.

#### **Epson**

The Epson Stylus Pro range of printers will have a similar status screen to the one shown below.

initial       per initial         pt flack.       per initial         pt flack.       per initial         initial       per initinininitial         in		
prisk   <		
indext     indext <th></th> <th>5</th>		5
table     table     ath     \$1000       table     table     table     table		5
Data Lobbit Lobbit Lobbit (D2L021) 152-00         mph         20000.000           Text         Head Coord         Text         Text <td< td=""><th></th><td></td></td<>		
Haddban     Nazek Deki       mr     Value       mr     Value       Ral     hampin       Ral     hampin       Soloman     hampin       Muth     hampin       Math     hampin       Jampin     hampin       Jampin     hampin       Jampin     hampin       Jampin     hampin		
Non         Description         Descripion         Description         De	1	
Ref         Def tem mage         3.00           60 mm         60 mm	Ink Levels (%)	
40 mm     important		
4%         interage         3.00           Mode Safet         apple margin         3.00           1000000000000000000000000000000000000		
Photo black gth Ushoown 150003000 double seld ontor (n2)		
ght Usbown ofter mergin 2000		
15000900 dade side artist ( 1500 v )		
coude sides control		
JN01988,000		
obser trem here         Off         0	• 20 B1 57 44 23 19 22 60	0 86 83 5
N#1368,600		
colour trans bars 0011 - 20 🛞		
cdour tran bers Off • 20 (2)		
ofour transfer         Off         20         St         20         St         20         St         20         St         20         20         20         20         60         60         60         50         5           0100         100	* 20 B 57 4t 22 19 22 80	0 86 83 5
JN01388,8000		

Overall the controls and information available here is very similar to the one described earlier for the Canon printers with one major exception and that is the fact that Epson printers do not feedback the media size or type. So this information has to be entered manually by the user.

manually the
d media type
2

The user must select the media name and roll size every time a new media is loaded. This information will not be updated by the system. It is vital that this information is correctly entered here to ensure correct printing.

For the width entry the user can either enter the values exactly or use short cuts for standard roll sizes such as '24i' or '44i' and the system will then convert this to the actual measurements automatically.

Example - enter '24i' and press enter, this will convert to 609.60mm and will be shown as such.

# HP

The HP Designjet range of printers will have a similar status screen to the one shown below.

	Z3200 24in Photo(Q6718A)		- COL			100
Ink supply low,			none		•	
				0.3	-	
				1 com		
			sheet list	ΕA	Ŧ	
			width	610.000		
	Status Update (Last updated: 17/03/2012 15:25:52)		launth	100000 000		
Sync Media	Colour Calib. Feed Adjust	Head Align.	lenger	20000.000		
			top margin	5.000		
Name	Value	*				Inklevels (%)
fedia source	Roll		bottom margin	5.000		
fedia name	LFP Gloss Inkjet Paper					
fedia width	610 mm		left margin	5.000		
emaining media length	Unknown		right margin	5.000		
erial No.	MY84A0C02D					
irmware Kev.	TR12-RB_11.0.0.3	_	double sided control	in RJP	٣	
1emory	256 MB					
rinthead 1: Gloss enhancer-Gray	OK		colour tram bars	Off • 20	\$	
rinthead 2: Blue-Green	0k	-				67 92 100 84 77 68 33 14 93 59 85 49
19 15-75-70) Lising H&© hardware rentertin	n kev					
5:25:29] Using HASP hardware protectio 5:25:29] Unregistered Copy - Prints left: 5:25:20] Distant Planta Meeting	n key : 104					
25/29 Onegstered Copy - Prins lend	1.07					

The main difference between the HP status and the other ones described so far, is in the **Remote Commands** section. Because of the HP sophisticated media management and calibration system there are specific commands available here that fully utilize these features.

#### **Remote Commands**

	Status Update (Last upda	ated: 17/03/2012 15:27:19)	
Sync Media	Colour Calib.	Feed Adjust	Head Align.

Sync Media – Whenever third party (Non HP) media profile is downloaded (see **Liveupdate** in the**Tools** section) on to the Shiraz Focus system then it would be necessary to upload the media information to the HP Z printer. This would then allow the user to select the correct media type under the Custom Media category on the printer as well as ensuring that the correct media calibration and setting is used when printing on to it.

Clicking on this button would then prompt the user for confirmation. Click OK to start the process.



Once the process is completed (it will take a few seconds depending on how many medias are uploaded) then a message is shown to verify this. You should then be able to see the new media type on the printer's 'Paper Type' under the 'Custom Media' category.

**Note:** Currently the HP Z printers have a limitation of a maximum capacity of 17 custom media. If you try to upload more than this number a printer system error will occur.

Colour Calib. – The system regularly tracks the media calibration state and will signal any changes that would require a new media calibration. This information is shown in the **Printer Info** table as illustrated below.

Name	Value
Paper source	Sheet
Paper name	Fujifilm High Gloss Photo Paper sheet
Calibration	Ok

There are three Calibration state as detailed below:

*OK* – Media calibration is up to date and does not require any action from the user.

*Pending* – Media calibration will be out soon and calibration is recommended. The user might choose to execute calibration procedure or not.

*Expired* – Media calibration is out and the user must initiate media calibration to ensure optimum quality.

Press the button to start the calibration procedure on the printer. A confirmation window is then displayed.

🖸 Coloi	ur Calib. 🛛 🔀
2	Trigger colour linearisation calibration? Press OK to proceed.
	OK Cancel

Click OK to proceed. The printer will then print the linearization patches followed by scanning and reading of these patches. This will usually take a few minutes to complete. It would then update the internal profile tables for the current media and sets the Calibration value to **OK**.

**Note:** Certain media type such as Backlit or Films cannot be calibrated this way.

119

Feed Adjust –This command instructs the printer to carry out an automatic media feed correction procedure. This might be necessary if there is a horizontal (printing direction) banding problems on the prints.

The printer first prints specific patterns that it will then measure and analyze for setting the correct feed adjustment values.

Head Align. – This procedure might be necessary to ensure that all print cartridges are perfectly aligned to each other especially when new ones have been installed. Click on the button to start the procedure that automatically prints and measures the alignment patterns for setting the correct values.

119

# **Tools**

There are a number of utility programs available here that can be called up at any time by the user to perform certain tasks. These applications are all integral part of the Shiraz Focus software and help in the smooth running of the system.

# **Photo Pack Editor**

The application's main task is the creation of additional photo packs or editing of existing ones. This is a simple 2D drawing package specifically designed for the making of photo packs. All the tools required for the task are clearly laid out for the user.

We will first have a closer look at the window's layout and all the components that constitute it. All the functions and options available here will be explained in full details. We would then run through an actual example and create a photo pack step by step.

The window is divided into three distinct areas as illustrated below.



#### **Tool Bar**

All major operators that are used for creating and manipulating photo cells are located here [1]. These operators are all context sensitive and can be applied to a single cell or a selection of.

Commands that perform similar operations are grouped together. These operators can also be called from the drop down menus located at the top of the window or short keys assigned to them.



# Draw (Photo Cells)

This is the main drawing tool in the editor. Select this option to start drawing photo cells on the canvas. First place your cursor somewhere within the canvas then click and drag the mouse. You will start seeing a transparent light blue rectangle being drawn. Move the cursor to indicate the opposite diagonal corner. Once you are happy with the sizing release the mouse button to end the drawing. You will now see a rectangle outline with anchor points placed on its boundaries.



At the end of the draw the edit mode changes to 'size & pan' allowing the user to resize or move the photo cell if required. It is also possible to enter the precise width and height as well as the X & Y coordinates of the cell in the entries provided in the **Control Panel** section.



The editor automatically limits the size and coordinates to the current photo pack canvas limits.

# Draw (Text Cells)

This function allows the user to create text cells that contain user-defined static text or variable one based on file properties or Exif data.

	20 	40 60	80 100		140	160	180	200	220	240 	260	280	300
	<b></b>		ŧ										ш
20		Photo	o label										ш
40			•										ш
60				C	è								U

To change the font and its properties, right-click on the select text cell and choose from the options available.

Photo label		
•	2	Edit text F2
		Photo file information  Photo EXIF information
		Align  Text orientation
		Set font
		Set font colour
		Change background colour
	D P	Link text box to photo Remove link
	×	Delete

It is also possible to change the font colour as well as the colour of its background box.



Please note that it is also possible here to specify a value for the Alpha channel that adds transparency to the corresponding objects. This will then results in objects falling behind it to show through. The amount shown from the object behind is controlled by the value entered here (Alpha channel).

To enter multiple lines of text simply press the enter key at the end of the line. The cursor will now be placed on the second line where you can start typing more text. You can move the cursor to any position on the text box by using the arrow keys.

Other type of text manipulations available here includes alignment and orientation. To use any of these functions first select the text cell and then right-click and choose the one required from the drop-down menu.

S.	
D	2
Se	t
· <	Edit text F2
ਨ	Photo file information
	Text orientation R Horizontal
d	Set font       ✓     Verticat opiniting down       Set font colour       ✓     Vertical pointing up
, O	Change background colour 👌 Upside-down
	Ink text box to photo       Remove link
	X Delete

To enable the use of the Exif data or file properties in text cells, you must first link the text cell to a photo cell. This can be done by first selecting the text cell and then clicking on the Link function from the tool bar.



Tools

Once the Link option has been selected then the user has the opportunity to point and select from the list of photo cell available the one that that the text cell should be attached to.

It is also now possible to add Exif & file information to the text cell. Right-click on the attached text cell and select as demonstrated below.



The user can add as many variable text data as needed. These entries will then be replaced by actual information from the placed images in the linked photo cells.

This is a very useful feature of the Focus software that enables users to automatically add text data within their photo packs. For example the filename can be added to the images placed in a contact sheet or the date and location of the images taken can be extracted from the embedded Exif data of placed images.

Linked text cells can be unlinked again by using the corresponding button available from the tool bar.

#### **Grid**

A grid with user definable size can be over laid on the canvas as a drawing aid for the user. It is also possible to switch on the snap mode that forces the cell sides to snap to the nearest grid when sizing or moving.

# Zoom

To examine or edit closely drawn items use the zoom function available here. Clicking on the icons incrementally increases or decreases the zoom factor.

125



**Undo** (Ctrl + Z) – To revert back one step in the editing process click on this icon. The user can undo as many steps as possible.

**Redo**(Ctrl + Y) – If the user has used the Undo option previously to go back one step then by clicking on this option here the editor will go forward one step to the previously undone step. The user can redo as many steps as available.

*Cut* (*Ctrl* + X) – This option allows the user to remove the selected items from the photo pack. These items are kept in the system buffer and can be pasted back if required.

*Copy* (*Ctrl* + *C*) – To make a copy of the selected items click on this icon. A duplicate of the items copied is kept in the system buffer and can be pasted as many times as required. The system only keeps the last copied elements in its buffer.

**Paste** (Ctrl + V) – The previously copied or cut items can be pasted at any time by using this option. The pasted item will be placed adjacent to the copied items. This option can be executed as many times as required. Subsequent pasted items will be placed on top of each other.

**Duplicate** (Ctrl + D) – This function copies and pastes selected items at a predefined offset to the original. The offset value can be set in the **Control Panel** under the **Drawing Options** tab. This option effectively combines the copy & paste functions into one. Additional duplication can be made by clicking again. All subsequent duplications are relative to the last one created. This function is very useful for performing step & repeats on selected items.

*Create Contour* – This option allows the user to quickly and easily create cells at a designated relative offset to a selected one. The offset value can be specified for both X and Y in the **Control Panel** under the **Drawing Options**.

Drawing options			
Grid size:		10.00	*
Duplicate offset:	x	50.00	*
	У	0.00	*
Contour offset:	x	-10.00	-
	У	-20.00	۵

Click again to create additional contours relative to the last one created. A higher Z order is assigned by the system to the newly created cells so that they are positioned in 'front'. This can be changed later if required.

**Delete** (**Del**) – To remove permanently any items first select and then click on this option. You can recall by using the **Undo** function.



*Align* – The full set of automatic alignment tools can be found here. As these cell alignments are with respect to other cells, they are only possible when multiple items have been selected. As their names imply they each align in a certain direction. The alignment is with respect to the photo cell (reference cell) that is closest to the direction that the alignment is being done to. This is illustrated graphically below.



Similarly if the Right Alignment was selected then the following would be the outcome.



In both cases above the reference object does not change position. This is also the case for the top and bottom alignments. But for both center alignments all objects are moved. The centering is done by considering the extreme coordinates of all objects and then calculating the middle point. All objects are then moved so that their center coincides with this point.

128



Similarly aligning center vertically would take the extreme top and bottom coordinates into consideration.

# Position

The operators here work with respect to the canvas size. Furthermore they can be applied to a single or multiple items. Their function is to center the selected items centrally horizontally, vertically or both within the canvas area.



When centering a number of items the overall boundary of the group is taken into account.



#### Group

To make simultaneous operations on a number of items easier the user can group them together as shown below.



Once items are grouped together a dashed blue line is drawn around the perimeter to highlight this. A grouped item can be split back to its individual items by applying the **Ungroup** function.

#### **Mirror**

Selection of items can be mirrored against the vertical or horizontal axis by applying the corresponding function. These operators are not applicable to single item.



In the above example all selected items are reflected against the vertical axis. The imaginary vertical axis goes through the vertical center of the canvas.



Similarly to reflect against the horizontal axis use the **Flip** option as demonstrated above. The imaginary horizontal axis goes through the horizontal center of the canvas.

Tools

# **Order**

The order in which cells overlap each other can be controlled by the two complementary functions available here. In the example below the lower right cell overlaps the other cell. To change the order, simply select the cell that you want to change the order of and then click on the required icon on the tool bar.



Send to Back

After

Their order will now change and this is reflected in the preview shown.



For situations where more than two cells are overlapping each other, then the selected cell will be sent to the top or bottom of the stack depending on the function selected. In the above example the top left cell is sent to the top of the stack so that it will now overlap all items.

132

To confirm and view the overlap order press (Ctrl + Q) key combinations. The system will now step through all the cells in the photo pack one by one and highlight their orders accordingly.

#### **Control Panel**

133

The settings for the canvas size and media parameters can be found in this section. Also located here are the default parameters for various functions within the editor.

The controls here are separated into three tabs.

Printer:	HP			
Model	Designiet 73100 44	1		
	besignjet 20100 T			
Paper:	A4			~
		width	210.00	-
		height	297.00	*
Orientat	ion:			
Port	rait	O Lar	dscape	
0	, arc			
Units:	milimeters		- abcope	~
Units:	milimeters			~
Units:	milimeters			~
Units:	milimeters			~
Units:	milimeters			<b>v</b>
Units: 1edia sou	milimeters			~
Units: ledia sou	milimeters urce options			~
Units: ledia sou prawing o x 0.00	milimeters urce options	width	0.00	•

#### **Canvas Size**

The printer make and model as well as the canvas size that the photo pack will be based on is selected here. The default printer is taken from the main Shiraz Focus setting but can be changed to another make and model if required.

The canvas size can be set by selecting a standard paper size or selecting the **user defined** option to enter your own sizes. It is also possible here to select the required orientation.

The Units entry sets the current measurement unit for all the numerical values used within the editor.

133

#### **Media Source**

The media supply type and its associated margins can be set here. Also in here is the margin setting required for photo packs that need to be printed in borderless mode.

⊙ Roll		🔾 She	et	
top 0.00	*	bottom	0.00	×
left 0.00	×	right	0.00	*
Borde	rless printing	)		
Margins fo	r borderless	printing:		

The main difference between the **Roll** and **Sheet** options is that in the roll mode margin values are not relevant whereas in the sheet mode they are crucial to ensure correct layout and printing. The values for the margins are read only and are set from the manufacturer's technical specification. These margins are graphically shown in red dashed line when selected.

1edia source			
🔵 Roll	<ul> <li>Sheet</li> </ul>		
top 5.00 💌	bottom 17.00		
eft 5.00 💌	right 5.00		
Borderless printi Margins for borderles	ng ss printing:		
left -5 mm, right -5 r	nm	<b>•</b>	

The editor will automatically limit the boundaries of drawn items to within these margins setting.

If you intend to use the photo pack in borderless mode on the printer then you must also select the **Borderless printing** option. This will now set the margins slightly outside the canvas area to allow for this. Again these margins are read only and are based on manufacturer's specification. Please note that on some printer makes it is possible to have more than one borderless margin option.

#### **Drawing Options**

Parameters for various functions in the editor can be set here. These values are then remembered as the default values on all subsequent sessions.

Grid size:	10.00
Duplicate offset:	x 10.00 💌
	y 10.00 💌
Contour offset:	x -5.00 💌
	y -5.00 🚔

Grid size – This value sets the distance between the gridlines in both vertical and horizontal direction.

Duplicate offset – These parameters set the distance by which the duplicate items are offset from the original item. These values are measured from the top left corners of the original and copy items.



The next subsequent duplication will be with reference to the newly created item. This is a very useful feature for doing automatic step & repeat. Negative offset values would place the copy to the left and above the reference item.

Contour offset –The editor can automatically create offset copies of the selected items, centered to the reference item. The X and Y gap between these items is selected here.

		25mm
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		K
C 1 (C 1	ar aa 👘	
Contour offset:	x -25.00	
		15mm
	v 15.00 🔿	
	y -15.00 💌	

Positive offset values will create copies that are bigger in one or both directions. Subsequent contours will be created with respect to the previous one made. Contours that might be too big or too small for the canvas size will not be created by the editor. The newly created contours have higher overlapping, Z, order than the previous ones.

Current Selection – Select the required cell by clicking on it. It will then be highlighted in light blue colour. The width and height of the selected item as well as its X & Y coordinates are displayed in their corresponding entries as shown below. These parameters are writable and the user can enter exact values here if required.



When multiple items are selected, then the values shown in here would be for the group.

# **Examples**

Let's have a look at some actual examples of creating a photo pack from start to finish. The complete process can be broken down to three easy steps as illustrated in the diagram below.



To start up the editor within the Shiraz Focus system either click on the Tools menu and select this option or press the (Ctrl + O) keys.

Canvas Size - When the editor is first loaded the default settings for the printer make and model are the same as the ones currently set in the Focus module. Also the default parameters are inherited from the previous session.

-160 -140 -	120 100 80 60 40 20 0	20 40 60 80 100	120 140 160 180	200 220 260 260 200 300 320	340 360 3
bespret 2200 24	1- Check the printer make & model				
intenetes •	2- Select or enter the				
	canvas size				
981 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111					
Hundlen L					
1000 C					
rce 8					
1					

If you would like to create photo packs for other printer types, then as in step **1** above first select the printer and then model required. Next step is to actually set the canvas size as in step **2**. This can either be done by selecting a standard page sizes from the paper drop down menu or typing the actual dimensions required. To change the orientation select on the one required. Any changes made here are then reflected in the canvas shown.

Note: To get a better view of the canvas use the zoom options available in the tool bar.

Next choose the media source that the photo pack is being designed for. The two main choices here are **Roll** and **Sheet**. The main difference between these two is the fact that in sheet mode the hardware margins must be taken into account when designing the photo pack. Failing to do so might cause the prints to be clipped on the printer if they fall outside the margins.

In the example above there are no margin settings as the media source is set for **Roll**. On the other hand if the **Sheet** option is selected then dashed red lines are drawn near the edges of the canvas to reflect this. The actual values for the margins are also shown for all four sides. These values are read only and cannot be altered.



By adding the margins we are effectively reducing the usable area but ensuring that all images on the photo pack will be printed in the correct position and without clipping.

If you intend to use the photo pack for borderless printing then make sure to select this option to instruct the editor to save the photo pack accordingly. When the borderless option is selected then the margins will be set slightly outside the canvas boundary to allow for this.

	30 p 50 100 150 200 250 200 350 400 450 500 500 500 600 600
sheet	
.00 bottom -5.00	
.00 right -5.00	
erless	
m, right -s mm	
10 -	
-	
-	
150	
-	
-	
8 1	
E	
3	
-	
8 =	
3	
<u>_</u>	
8 3	
-	
° =	
ans —	
0 width 0.00 0 5 -	

The values for the borderless margins are set from the manufacturer's specification and cannot be changed. On some printer models it is possible to have more than one option of borderless margins. Consult the printer's user manual for more details.

Once the canvas sizes and all its associated options have been set you will be ready to move on to the next step.

Photo Pack Design – Now that we have setup the canvas properties we can start the main task of designing the actual photo pack. The first step is to select the **Draw** operator from the tool bar.



Now place the cursor somewhere on the canvas and click and drag. A transparent rectangle will now be drawn. Once you are roughly happy with the size release the mouse button to stop the drawing.



The cell just drawn will now be displayed in light blue and its corner and center points highlighted.



At the end of the draw the editor state is changed to the select mode that allows the user to resize or move the cell. Place the cursor somewhere inside to move or near the corner or center points to resize.

To size and position the cell exactly, enter the corresponding parameters in the entry boxes provided.



The origin of both the canvas and the cell is based on their top left corner. The editor automatically limits the size and coordinates to within the canvas boundary.

Next we want to add a black border frame around the picture box. To do this select the picture box and then click on the Frame tab and set the border size and colour as shown below.

is size	-50	0 50	100	150	200	250	300	350	400	450	500	550	600 650
source													
ng options		_											
5													
order			/										
dfn 6.00 🗄 🕅 🔳	8		$\langle \rangle$										
p 2.00 D Chang	e border colour		$\times$										
invas			$\langle \ \rangle$										-
ed size 0.00													
ed type   mirror	° =												-
© sample													
) stretch	3												-
image	150 -												
eriap 0.00													
trim marks default													
noramic													
NS 1 👘	8 -												
umns 1 🖓													
P 0.00 🐨													
anment Top *	w -												
	Ĕ												
	8 -												-
													-
	8 -												
													-
-													
00 🗢 width 164.00	·												

We have also have added a 2mm gap between the border and the photo box for effect.

In most cases we would want to create copies of the cells and place them at regular intervals (step & repeat). To do this we must first decide the gap between the repeats and enter this value in the **Duplicate offset** entry boxes.

In the example here we would want to have a gap of 40mm in the X direction and no change in the vertical direction (Zero Y move). So the offset value would be (X:200,Y: 0). The reason that the X value is 200 is because the offset is calculated from the left edge to left edge, so in this case the width of the cell which 160 is added to 40 to give us 200. Of course the Y is 0 because we want the repeats on the same vertical level.

Once you have entered the offset, make sure that the original cell is selected and press the **Duplicate** icon on the tool bar as illustrated below.

142



To create more duplicates simply click on the **Duplicate** icon again. This would result in another copy with respect to the last one just created.



The next stage would be to repeat the entire row in the vertical direction. To do this we would first need to select the row by dragging a lasso around all the cells or pressing the **Select All** (Ctrl + A) shortcut keys. Selected items will be highlighted with their control points.

Tools

Now we would again need to enter the offset values for the repeats. This time the X offset would be zero and, assuming that we would want the same gap of 40mm in the vertical direction, Y would be 130 (90+40). Click the duplicate button twice to create three rows in total.

**Note:** If you make any mistake at any stage simply use the Undo (Ctrl + Z) & Redo (Ctrl + Y) icons located on the tool bar.

In the final stage of our design process we would want to make sure that the whole design is exactly centered in the photo pack. This is easily done by selecting all (Ctrl + A) and then clicking on the **Center in page** icon on the tool bar.



Saving – To save the newly created 'masterpiece' select the **Save** option from the **File** menu or press (Ctrl +S) shortcut keys. A file dialog window will be presented to the user with the default photo pack folder for the currently selected printer model.
rganize 🔻 New folder	r					2
Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size		
lew screenshots	퉬 Canvas wrap	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
📃 Desktop 🗉	Contact sheet	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
🐌 Downloads	鷆 Faux Canvas	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
💷 Recent Places	Frame and text	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
	HP Canvas	07/03/2012 15:47	File folder			
Desktop	📗 Jetmaster	13/03/2012 10:51	File folder			
🥃 Libraries	📗 multiple <sup>6</sup>	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
Documents	Panoramic	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
J Music	🍌 sheet	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
Pictures	📗 single	06/03/2012 16:55	File folder			
🛃 Videos	wunderbars	08/03/2012 18:07	File folder			
强 Ramin i5						
🖳 Computer						
📬 Network 🔻						
File name:						•
Concention Dia 1	D					
Save as type: Photo	Pack (*.spp)					•

The 'foto' folder is the parent folder for the photo packs and there are many subfolders for all the photo packs categories.

In our case we would want to save it in the **multiple** folder and save it as *example.spp*.

Save in: 📔					
	multiple		•	🗢 🗈 💣 🎰	
My Recent	20x20cm with 2 20x20cm with 4 20x30cm Variatio 200x200 with 2 i 200x200 with 2 i 200x200 with 4 i	images overlap2.spp squares 2.spp ons.spp images overlap3.spp images overlap.spp squares and frame.spp		A4 landscape wit A4 landscape wit A4 landscape wit A4 Landscape wit A4 portrait sheet A4 portrait with A4 portrait with	h 1 square and 2 h 1 square image th margins.spp t with 2 images.sp 2 landscape imag 3 landscape imag
My Documents	200x200 with 4 A3 Landscape sh A3 Landscape w A3 + landscape s A3 + portrait she A4 landscape wi	squares.spp neet with landscape image. ith landscape image.spp sheet with 1 image.spp set with 2 images.spp th 16 small images.spp	spp	<ul> <li>A4 Portrait with r</li> <li>A4 Portrait with r</li> <li>A4 landscape with</li> <li>A4 landscape with</li> <li>A4 portrait with :</li> <li>A4 portrait with :</li> <li>A4 portrait with :</li> </ul>	margins and 2 ima margins.spp h 3 portrait imag 3 images 2.spp 3 images.spp ons II.sop
My Computer	A4 portrait bg_2 A4 portrait shee A4 portrait_2 10	10x15 landscape.spp t with 3 images.spp lx15 landscape.spp		A4 landscape wit	h 20 small image:
My Network File Places Sa	e <u>n</u> ame: ave as <u>t</u> ype:	example Photo Pack (*.spp)		<b>•</b>	Save Cancel

Once we have saved the photo pack, it would appear in the list of photo packs in the Focus module on the exit from the editor. As default the file extension of *.spp* is assigned to the filename.

An example of the use of the photo pack just created can be seen below. Here we have selected all the outside cells and then loaded the image for the 'border'. Then selected all the inside cells and loaded the image of the baby. The resultant design can be seen below.



This is just one example of the kind of templates that can be easily made with the editor. With a bit more creativity and patience it is possible to create very nice and usable range of photo packs of your own.

### Canvas Gallery Wrap Template Design

In this next example we will go through the steps for creating a canvas gallery wrap template. The steps are very similar to the above example except for the additional step needed to define the canvas border size and type.

Gallery wrap refers to a method of stretching an artist's canvas so that the canvas wraps around the sides (stretcher or strainer bars) and is secured to the back of the frame. The frame is usually 30mm (1.25") thick. The result is the hardware (staples or tacks) used for securing the canvas is not visible on the sides.

The sides of the canvas are prepared and primed in the same manner as the face, which may then be painted a solid colour or painted to continue the image appearing on the face. This method of stretching and preparing a canvas allows for a frameless presentation of the finished painting.

In canvas printing, the term gallery wrap refers to an image that appears on the sides of the frame as well as the front. The image on the sides is either a continuation or a reflection of the main image as well solid colours. The various gallery wrap options available in the software are graphically demonstrated below:



The image above details the various parts of a typical gallery wrap template. The 'Frame Border' is automatically generated by the software based on the image placed on the 'Canvas Face'. The various effects available are shown below:



Mirror

In this mode the edge area of the image is automatically duplicated and mirrored to the size of the frame. In this way no part of the image is 'lost' to the frame area. This is the most popular method used.



### Image

Using the Image option as shown above then the image is scaled automatically to cover the face and frame area. In this way part of the image is used for the frame that can result in cropping of the image. This mode is only useful if the main subject matter is not close to the edges. In the above example it is clearly not a suitable option as the top of the Eifel tower will be 'cropped' out.



### Stretch

The stretch effect simulates the manual stretching of the canvas around the frame. This option works particularly well for images that have uniform colours around their edges.



Sample

This option sets the frame to use a solid colour based on the average colour calculated for the placed image.



Picker

This option enables users to select any colour required for the frame by using the system's colour picker feature.



None

As the name suggests this option leaves the frame area as blank.

The first step in designing a canvas template is to first define the overall dimension. The total width is the total of Canvas Face Width + 2 x Frame Border + 2 x Back Border. Similarly the total height is Canvas Face Height + 2 x Frame Border + 2 X Back Border.

In the example below we want to design a gallery wrap that has a Canvas Face of 400 x 600mm, a Frame Border of 50mm and a Back Border of 30mm. So based on that the total width and height would be = 560 x 760mm.

Photopack editor	
	55 S 2 1 2 5 0 0 1 5 5 1 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Canvas size -400 -350 -300 -250	
printer Epson	
model Stylus Pro 7890	
paper User Defined	
width 560.00 T	
portrait     O landscape	
units mimeters	
8	
28	
8	
8 =	
°=	
8	
8	
8	
*=	
8	
Media source	
Frames 8	
x 0.00 () width 0.00 ()	
y 0.00 💿 height 0.00 💿 📑	

Once we have defined the overall dimensions as illustrated above then we can draw the Canvas Face and define its width/height and X/Y position.



Next step is to place the Face area centrally within the canvas area. To do this, simply click on the auto centre icon as shown below.



Now we need to define the Frame Border size. This can be done by going into the Frames tab first and then entering the required value into the Bleed Size box as shown below.



Tools

It is also here that we define the Frame Type which in this case is Mirror. The design is now complete and we just need to save this as before.



To use the photo pack, select the template from the folder that it was saved to and drag your image onto it. An example of which is shown above.

# Liveupdate

To install additional media profiles or update your Shiraz printer drivers from the Shiraz cloud storage or Shiraz Focus DVD use the **Liveupdate** tool that is available from the **Tools** menu.

To start up the application click on the Tools drop down menu in the Focus module and select this option. The following windows will then be displayed by the system.



If your computer is connected to the internet then you will be able to check and download the latest media profiles as well as any updates to the printer drivers.

If you do not have an internet connection then you must use the DVD or local network option as your source.

To configure the parameters for the Liveupdate application click on the Setup button.

V LiveUpdate			
	Cloud Storage Bucket profile: shiraz		
	Bucket driver: shiraz		
8.		Check connectio	n
		Obtain connection d	letails
Profiles			
Drivers	DVD Drive		
Drivers	<d:></d:> Profiles V8		
			update dvd list
Log	Local Network		
Setup			
	Mode	OVD Drive	Cocal Network
Exit			
			Main menu

Click on the **Check connection** button to test and validate the computer connection to the cloud storage. A message will pop up to indicate the success or failure of the test. To use a DVD as the source insert the DVD in the corresponding DVD drive on your computer. Click on the refresh icon next to the DVD Drive to check and confirm the DVD contents. Please note that options that are not available are automatically greyed out and cannot be selected.

The **Mode** setting decides what source that will be used for the download. Once everything is set you can proceed to download media profiles or update the printer drivers.

### **Profiles**

Click on the option here to start the media profile download process for the currently installed printer on your Focus system.



Now click on the **Check Update** button to start the system checking and listing the currently installed profiles on your system as well as all the ones available for download. A detailed list of media profiles and their associated information are then displayed.

Profiles that are already installed on your system are shown in black. New and updated profiles are highlighted in blue.



Profiles can be selected by manually clicking on their check boxes or by group using the options available.



It is also possible to list profiles that include certain words by using the **Search** feature available. For example to list all profiles that contain the word 'Glossy' type the word and click Search.

Once you have selected the profiles required click on the **Download** button to start downloading them.



All selected profiles are downloaded and at the end of the process the media profiles status are updated.

### **Drivers**

Printer drivers for the printer model installed can be updated (if available) by using the **Drivers** option.

The version number of the currently installed driver, its status as well as information about any update for it is shown here.

Click on the **Download** button to download the driver for the selected printer model.



### Log

A detailed log of all the activities for each session is generated by the system that can be viewed and examined by users.

# Setup

To configure and check the current settings for the Liveupdate application click on the **Setup** button.

LiveUpdate		
	Cloud Storage Bucket profile: shiraz Bucket driver: shiraz	
•	Chec Obtain c	k connection
Profiles		
Drivers	DVD Drive Insert installation DVD	
Log	- Local Naturals	
Setup		
Exit	Mode           Image           Image           Image	C Local Network
		Tain menu

### **Check connection**

Click here to check the current connection status to the Shiraz cloud storage. If successful then a corresponding message will be shown. If there are any issues then they are highlighted.

#### **DVD Drive**

If you are using a DVD drive for your install then click on the 'refresh' icon located next to the drop down menu to read and confirm the DVD being used. The volume name of the DVD will be then shown as confirmation.

### Local Netwrok

It is also possible to use any folder on the local computer or network drive available for the source update. Click on the 'open' icon next to the entry box to locate and set the main folder that contains the source input.

### Mode

Here you can actually select which input source to use for the Liveupdate application. Any source not available or currently set is greyed out.

# Addpaper

The list of standard page sizes for each printer model can be edited or added to by using this simple tool. These page sizes are used in the Photo Pack Editor application to set the canvas sizes.

To start up this application either click on the **Tools** menu and select this option or press the (Ctrl + R) shortcut keys.

<b>Paper Wizard</b> Printer Type	? 🗙	Paper Wizard Printer Model	? 🗙
Select Printer Type from the list here.	Epson	Select Printer Model from the list here.	Stylus Pro 9880
< Back	Next > Cancel	< Back	Next > Cancel

The Paper Wizard will now assist you in choosing the printer make and model that you want to edit the paper list for. Once you have confirmed the selection, the page size edit screen will be displayed.

8 x 10 in	-Parameters	,
11 x 14 in	Name	
16 X 20 In 24 - 20	Name	
24 x 30 cm		
30 x 40 cm	\A/;_Hh	
30 x 40 m	VVIGLIT	
10 x 60 cm		
	I lataba	
10 11	Height	
12		
13		
kosi B		
Ansi C		
Ansi D	Units	Millimetre 🗸
knsi E		
30		
31		
32		
33		
34	Add/Un	Remove
35	7,667,00	Hemove
egal		
Super A3/B		
Help		OK Cancel
Help		OK Cancel

Here you can either select an existing page size and edit it or add a new one. To edit an existing one click on its name in the list and its parameters will then be shown. Now edit any of the parameters required and click on the **Add/Update** button to save.

To add a new page size, enter its name followed by its width and height. You can also select the units to use for its dimensions. Press the **Add/Update** button to save the setting. The new page size will now appear in the list.

To delete a page size, select first and then click on the **Remove** button.

Press OK to exit the application. You will now be asked if you want so save the changes made or not.

### **KeyInfo**

This application is used for checking and updating the Shiraz Focus security key (dongle). To call up this module click on the Tools menu and select this option or press the (Ctrl + E) shortcut keys.

Product		Driver	Clients
Shiraz Focus		Xerox	Design
		Canon	Layout
Кеу		Roland	Foto
Туре	Hasp 4 👻	Mutoh	
HASP-ID	697654000	Mimaki	
Batch	200	✓ Epson	
Options		Seiko	
Version	400	Minilab	
Roll Width	XL 👻	Encad	
Modules	Raster/Photo 👻	√ HP	
Queues	1	Octopus	
Distributor	4400	Jeti	
Date	8609	✓ OEM	
		KIP	
Extras	Colour	InkTec	
	V Lot Felder	Printer Model	
Port Mo	itor	0	
✓ Limited Ac	tivation		
Count	78		Get Info
RUS			
			Update

**Note:** If you don't have a dongle (running in demo version) then you will get a message saying 'no key found'.

The information here confirms the setup of your key and license. It is here that the system checks for the options allowed for your particular product.

There are five groups of settings available that fully describe all options available.

**Product** – The string here describes the actual name of your product.

**Key** – Information here is about the actual hardware key and its internal serial number. This information is recorded in our database system and must be quoted when contacting your dealer or us directly.

Options – The list of modules and features allowed on your product are listed here.

- Version The version number that is supported by your key is shown here. Newer versions of the software might not run properly. As newer versions of the product are released you might have to upgrade your key to support these.
- Roll Width This information here confirms the size category of your product. This value here decides to what maximum width you can print to.
- Modules The product type is shown here. Additional modules might become available later on that require an upgrade to your key to support them.
- Queues The number of printers that can be run simultaneously from your software is shown here.
- Distributor The internal code of the Shiraz Focus distributor. For information only.
- Date Internal date of the key activation. For information only.

**Limited Activation** – If you are running an evaluation version of the Shiraz Focus software then this information here shows the number of prints that are left before the dongle stops functioning.

Driver – The list of printer drivers that is allowed for your product is listed here.

The **Get info** button here refreshes the lists of information shown by checking the dongle again.

Most of the information and settings described above can be changed by using the **RUS** option available here. To update the key click on the RUS option and then enter or copy and paste the codes given to you. Now click on the **Update** button to save them into the dongle memory. If you have more than one code to enter, then you must enter these one by one.

**Note:** The codes used for updating the key are very long hexadecimal characters (0-9 and a-f) please be careful when typing them in or copy and pasting them.

Once the codes have been accepted successfully a confirmation message is displayed and the information shown updated.

# **New Printer**

To change the current printer type selected in the Shiraz Focus system for another one select this option from the Tools menu or press the (CTRL + W) shortcut keys.

This module effectively runs the setup wizard that was used first time that Shiraz Focus application was run. By using this option you will completely wipe out all existing jobs and reset all configuration and setup options.

🖸 New	Printer 🔀
!	<ul> <li>A New Printer Wizard will follow and on completion of the wizard the following will occur:</li> <li>Your current configuration and jobs will be deleted.</li> <li>This application will automatically EXIT.</li> <li>You will need to start the application to use your new printer.</li> <li>Do you wish to proceed?</li> </ul>
	OK Cancel

A warning message that details the procedure that would follow will be displayed that the user must confirm to proceed. If you are happy to continue then click **OK** to start the queue setup wizard.

For full details of the setup wizard that would follow please refer to the **Getting Started** section of this manual.

At the end of the setup a confirmation message of the new printer model that has been setup will be shown and the application will automatically exit.

🧧 Print	er	
٩	New Printer:HP_Designjet Z3100 44 created. Application will exit automatically, then re-start to use the new Printer.	
	ОК	

Click on the Shiraz Focus shortcut on the Desktop to start the application with the new settings.

# Costing

The costing module allows the system to produce estimates and actual costing of jobs based on user values for ink and media. Before the actual printing the system analysis the amount of inks and media usage for each job and produces an estimated price for the job. Once the jobs has actually been printed then the user can extract the actual ink usage and media from the printer itself. The system will then recalculate the costing based on these.

To setup the costing matrix the user must first enter the prices for the media and ink in the costing table. Select the Costing function from the Tools menu. You will now be presented with a window similar to the one shown below. Here the system will list all currently loaded media profiles and allows you to enter a value against each of these. Also here the user must enter the ink prices per milliliter. The actual prices for these items should be obtained from your supplier. Click OK to save the table.

	Media Name	Cost (£/m²)	
1	HP Artist Matte Canvas	3.25	
2	HP Smooth Fine Art Paper	0	
3	HP Textured FA Paper	0	
4	HP Heavyweight Coated Paper	0	
5	HP High-Gloss Contract Proofing Paper	0	
6	HP Matte Litho	0	
7	HP Premium Instant Dry Gloss	0	
8	HP Premium Instant Dry Satin	0	
9	HP SG Contract Proofing	0	
10	HP Super HW Plus Matte Paper	0	
11	Quicksilver Pro Gloss 270	0	
12	Quicksilver Pro Satin 270	0	
IP Vi	vera ink (£/ml) 0.23		

Please note that the system will only calculate the costs for media list that have actual value against them.

Now every time a job is sent to the print queue that uses one of these media with pricing against them the system will produce an estimate of the total media and ink usage as well as their costing.

To see the estimate costing you can either examine the queue log or examine the job details by double clicking on each job entry as shown below.

urrent jobs (1 job, 6 images)	The details 20080722 402404 44		
eld jobs (b jobs, 0 mages) elference * Istatus Profile Dimensions Quantity Pile Type Infe Size Sub	Edt           Profie         Qualitier Pro Gloss 270g Ethanced           Assfy         Left           Variative Pro Gloss 270g Ethanced         V           State         No           Quartity         Left           Capies         1           Label         V           Ventory         V	Personeter         Value           Taria	
ac log         10242471 (See Yes) adverted: 2008772, 102496.87           (Y7 10242421 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102496.87         10242421 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102496.87           (Y7 10242421 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102494.87         1024291 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102494.87           (Y7 10242421 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102494.87         10242921 (See yes) adverted: 2008772, 102494.97           (Y7 10242221 (See yes) adverted: 200978, 10249.87         1024291 (See yes) adverted: 2009772, 10249.87           (Y7 10242321 (See yes) adverted: 200978, 10249.87         1024291 (See yes) adverted: 2009772, 10241.94           (Y7 10242321 (See yes) adverted: 2009774, 10249.87         1024291 (See yes) adverted: 2009774, 102491 (See yes) adverted: 2009774	k Wage = 0.17ml	OK Cancel Help	

Once the job has been printed then go to the Archive tab and click on the update costing icon to extract the actual usage and costing from the printer.

raz Focus					_ 2
rofile Tools Help					
ign 🚽 Printer					
Archived jobs (3 jobs, 34 images)					
Reference V Status Profile	Dimensions Quant	tity   File Type   File Size	Printed	User name	
	al 932.000 x 196.950 (85.09%) 1 al 1087.000 x 599.000 (83.41%) 1	Nest	2008-07-17 17:22:44 2008-07-17 12:53:36	Ramin Ramin	
Rest-22-07-10-25-23-202 ODne Quicksilver Pro Gloss 270g Enha	aced 961.880 x 101.940 (87.79%) 1	Nest	2008-07-22 10:33:38	Ramin	
					update jobs with actual costing
eue log					
22/07 10:30:21] tob 20080722 102414.tif Processing					<b>^</b>
22/07 10:30:21] job 20080722_102515.tif Initializing					
22/07 10:30:22] job 20080722_102515.tif Interpreting					
22/07 10:30:24 job Nest-22-07-10-25-23-202 Processing					
22/07 10:30:24] job Nest-22-07-10-25-23-202 Printing 22/07 10:33:38] job Nest-22-07-10-25-23-202 Finished					
22/07 10:33:38] Nest-22-07-10-25-23-202 moved from Active folder to Archive folder - prin 22/07 10:33:38] Oueue process finished, status: Success	ing finished				
22/07 10:33:38] Stopping queue					<b>~</b>
				Quicksliver Pro Gloss 270a Enhanced	HP Designiet Z3100 44:Idle 😽 🕕 Trik sunniv k

The system will now query the printer for these data that might take a few seconds and will notify the user once finished. The user can now examine the actual costing by double-clicking on the job entries.

chived jobs (3 jobs, 34 images)			
Intel:10:07:17:17:10:00         ● Dene:         Quicksiver Pro Giss 270 given           Intel:17:07:17:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07:07	Edt       Polfs       Quidalive Pro Gloss 270g Enhanced       Nathy       Veft       Vashify       Veft       State       100.00%       Constraint	Parameter         Value           Taris         Value           Taris         C:Property 202305           Park         C:Property Person           Park         Curkather Pro Gloss 270           Mode         RGB           Construct         300           Poul Paper Wolth         151.577           Poul Paper Wolth         151.577           Poul Paper Wolth         151.597           Corps Height         101.539           V Scale         100%           Corps Height         101.539           V Scale         100%           Corps Height         151.577           Poul Paper Wolth         151.577           Poul Paper Meight         151.597           Corps Height         151.597           Corps Height         151.577           Poul Paper Meight         01.598           X Scale         100%           Corps Height         01.598           Y Scale         00%           Poul Paper Meight         0.2059	
e log 07 10-030-01 (pb 20080772_10414.48 Hotesting 07 10-030-01 (pb 20080722_102414.48 Hotesting 07 10-030-01 (pb 20080722_102414.48 Hotesting 07 10-030-01 (pb 20080722_102415.48 Hotesting 07 10-030-01 (pb 20080722_10245.58 Hotesting) 07 10-030-01 (pb 20	Copies 1 Copies Label Copies I Copies	OK Cancel Heb	

The estimated values are now replaced with the actual data.

# **Hot Folder**

The system can be set up to operate in an automated workflow manner via the hot folder option. The user can simply drag & drop images on to designated folders where they will then be picked up automatically by the Focus server and processed according to user defined job parameters.

To set up and configure the hot folders go to the Printer tab and then select the Setup tab. Now click on the Template category to locate the Hot Folder Widget option.

	(menage hot follow)	
et mg 10 114-553] The trul evaluation period has expend. 10 114-553 The trul evaluation for the 10 114-553 The trul evaluation for the trul 10 114-553 The trul evaluation of the package, please 10 114-553 Queues man -> 85/541_571115_940_2980 10 114-553 Queues man -> 85/541_571115_940_2980	tact your resulter for further details.	

Click on this button to launch the application.

Manage hot folder(s)		2 <mark>- × -</mark>
<b>(+)</b>		
	O Default	
7-3	e the	
$\Theta$		

There you can see the Default setting that can be edited but cannot be removed. To add a new hot folder , click on the Plus icon. Now you will be presented with the PrintFlow wizard as shown below:

PrintFlow Wizard				
Shiraz				
PrintFlow				
enter	a unique name			
Photo glo	ssy x 2			
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

The first step is to enter the name for the hot folder. Once you have entered the name, click Next to go on to the next step.

In this next step you can select the base template that will be used as the starting point for the job parameters that will be assigned to the hot folder. This could be useful for using an existing setting that only requires a small change to it.



Select the required Preset and click Next to go on to the next step.



Here you can edit and configure from the list of job parameters available.

There are three area s here that control the operation of the hot folder system.

# **Edit Template**

The parameters within the **edit template** area are used to set the job options that are applied to all incoming images. The options available here are further explained below:

**Profile Name**: this parameter sets the colour profile table that will be applied to all images found in the hot queue folder. This table also sets the print mode such as print speed and number of passes that will be used for printing images. The print mode can be further edited under the Print Mode section.

**Paper Name**: select from the list of paper sizes available that you require the images to be printed at. The system will automatically scale images to this paper size. The user can further control how the images are scaled by editing the Page Policy option under the Job Parameters heading.

### **Job Paramaters**

quantity: sets the value for the number of jobs that would be printed.

crop marks: selecting this option adds 10mm crop marks to each corner of the image.

job label: adds job information to the top left corner of the image when selected.

cut: this option when selected instructs the printer to execute a cut command at the end of the print.

**super borderless**: this option enables the printer to print in the borderless mode (edge to edge on all four sides). Please note that borderless printing is not supported for all media types and will not have an effect on non supported media types.

**Nest job**: all incoming images in the hot folder will be automatically nested for the best use of the loaded media when this option is set. When this option is not elected then all images are printed in single mode.

### **Page Policy**

The parameters here decide on the final output size of images. Images can be either printed in their original sizes or be configured to print in user defined sizes.

### Fit

Use this option to fit the image to the selected output size with the maximum scale (best fit) without any distortions. The image is centred in the page automatically. The image is scaled so that at least one side is exact fit. This means that the resultant output might have 'white' space in one dimension.

### Fill

The entire page is filled with the image without distortions. This option will cause some cropping of the image in one direction.

### Original

This option will keep the original image size and centres the image in the page. The image will be cropped out if it is bigger than the selected output size.

### **Distort**

As the name suggests the image is distorted in one or both dimensions to fill the entire output size.

Once all the required parameters are set click Next to go to the final step where a summary of the settings is shown.



Click on the Finish button to confirm and create the template as well as the associated hot folder for it.

A short cut of the hot folder is created on the computer's desktop where the user can now drop their images that will then be picked up and processed according to the template just created.

# **Photo Packs**

What is a Photo Pack and how do we use them. It is actually quite simple, but very important to understand the concept to fully take advantage of Focus.

A Photo Pack is a template which determines the size of the paper you want to print on including white space, frames, text etc., and also the size of the printed photo(s) – these two sizes do not have to be the same.

Let us look at an example:



Here we have selected a Photo Pack 400x300mm which has a 45mm white border on each side so the size of the photo will be 310x210mm. The red square represents the photo area and it is here you place the actual photo to be printed. The red square also means that the photo area has been selected, if you click outside the Photo Pack the red square disappears because the photo area is no longer selected.

You put the photo in the photo area on the Photo Pack either by dragging the thumbnail image onto the photo area or by double clicking on the thumbnail (make sure the photo area is selected). It could then look like below.



But if you look closer you will notice that the picture has been cropped at the top and bottom, the whole photo area has been filled. This is because the aspect ratio of the picture is not the same as that of the image area.

Image Edit		
acement		
itate	<b>D</b> C	
iirror		
djust	¥ Q	
it		

If you want to see and print the whole photo, just click on Image Edit tab on the left side, and then on the left of the two placement buttons.

You will see the following. It is called fit image, the whole picture can be seen in the photo area, but there are extra white spaces on the left and right sides.



If you print this on a roll it will be difficult to see where to cut it to get the correct size of 300x400mm, because of the white spaces around the picture. So we want to have some cut marks, that is easy just click on Print Options tab and you will see the following.

Here you can click on crop marks or on boundary marks, crop marks set marks in each corner while boundary marks makes a thin black line around the printed Photo Pack. It is best to use boundary marks if you are cutting with scissors. You can configure the size of crop marks and boundary marks in File/Preferences.

Print Options	
quantity	1
crop marks	
boundary marks	
job label	
cut	X
nest	

# **Examples of multi Photo Packs**

We can make the Photo Packs much more sophisticated with multiple picture areas, like these two. For clarity all photo areas have been selected. How do we select more photo boxes at the same time? Just as you would normally do multiple selection, hold the Ctrl key down when you click in the picture area. Or select one photo area and then press Ctrl + A to select all the boxes.



The next example is a contact sheet and it is populated as you can see. Here are a couple of new things, text and batch processing.

Select all photo boxes with Ctrl + A, and then select all the thumbnails in the same way, click on the first and then Ctrl + A. Drag the first image into an image area and then answer Single to the prompt shown below.
181

How do you wan	t to populate th	e photo packs?
,	The Letters of	- Freedor Freedor
-		
Multiple	Single	Cancel

Select all photo areas again and click on Fit image. Then submit by clicking on the big print button, and Focus will automatically populate and submit the next batch of photos until all have been done.



## **Examples of Photo Pack with text and frames**

Here are a few examples of Photo Packs with text and frames. These are examples included in Focus, and they just show a little of what is possible.

The one below has a gray, then a thin black and then a wide white frame with the text.





## **Printing without Photo Packs**

You can also print a photo without a Photo Pack but with its original size. All you have to do is select Original instead of a Photo Pack. You can even add a white frame evenly around. Just go to File, Preferences and Frame and here tick on and set the frame width. This type of frame only has effect when printing original.

## **Canvas wrap and Panoramic print**

Last but not least Focus can save you a huge amount of time if you are printing on canvas and do canvas wrapping. Take a look at the picture below, everything inside the dashed line is the front of the canvas.



Outside the dashed line is the wrapping, partly on the sides and partly on the back. And notice that the wrapping is mirrored which is what most people prefer, but there are also other options such as stretch, sample, image or colour pick.



Above you see a panoramic photo Pack with a 10 mm gap between the canvasses. You do not see the wrapping here, because that would make it too difficult to get an impression of the final result but of course it will be printed with the wrap. You can print panoramic with any number of rows and columns.

Here are a couple of examples of panoramic Photo Pack with drop, here centered, but the drop can be both at the top the bottom. And even better, setup of panoramic can be done interactively.





Shiraz Focus V4

185